
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Monday, 19 September 2022.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Finance, Economic 
Development and 
Corporate Services 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

     
 

 

Tuesday, 27 September 2022 at 2.00 pm 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House,  

St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Helen Crawford (Chairman) 
Councillor Ben Green (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor John Dawson, Councillor Gloria Johnson, Councillor Philip Knowles, 
Councillor Susan Sandall, Councillor Ian Stokes, Councillor Paul Wood and  
Vacancy (Alliance SK) 
 

Agenda 
 

 This meeting can be watched as a live stream, or at a later 
date, via the SKDC YouTube Channel 

 

 

1.   Public Speaking 
 

The Council welcomes engagement from members of the public. To speak at this 
meeting please register no later than 24 hours prior to the date of the meeting via 
democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

 

2.   Apologies for absence 
 

 

3.   Disclosure of interests 
 

 

4.   Minutes of the meeting held on 19 July 2022 
 

(Pages 3 - 8) 

5.   Updates from previous meeting 
 

To consider updates on actions agreed at the meeting held on 19 July 
2022. 
 

(Page 9) 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
https://www.youtube.com/user/SouthKestevenDC
mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk


 

6.   Announcements or updates from the Leader of the Council, Cabinet 
Members or the Head of Paid Service 
 

 

7.   Draft ICT Strategy 2022-2025 
 

To provide the Committee with details of the updated ICT strategy 
 

(Pages 11 - 30) 

8.   Update on St Martin's Park Demolition Works 
 

To provide the Committee an update regarding the demolition works at 
the former Cummins factory, known as the St Martins Park development 
scheme and next steps with remediating the site prior to its disposal.  
  

(Pages 31 - 88) 

9.   Finance Update Report: April - August 2022 
 

To inform Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee of the Council’s forecast 2022/23 

financial position as at the end of August 2022. The report covers the 

following areas: 

 

• General Fund Revenue Budget 

• Housing Revenue Account Budget 

• Capital Programmes – General Fund and Housing Revenue 
Account 

(Pages 89 - 105) 

10.   Work Programme 2022 – 2023 
 

To consider the Committee’s Work Programme for 2022 – 2023. 
 

(Pages 107 - 109) 

11.   Exclusion of Press and Public 
 

The agenda item below contains information which is exempt from publication. The 
press and public may therefore be excluded during discussion of this agenda item 
under paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) 
at the relevant stage of the discussion and debate. 
 

 

12.   Update on the Grantham High Street Heritage Action Zone Shop 
Front and Building Regeneration Programme 
 

To provide a progress update on the High Street Heritage Action Zone 
Shopfront Regeneration Programme.  
 

(Pages 111 - 119) 

13.   Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstance decides is urgent 
 

 



 
 

Meeting of the 
Finance, Economic Development 
and Corporate Services Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Tuesday, 19 July 2022, 10.30 am 
 

Council Chamber – South Kesteven House, 
St Peter’s Hill, Grantham, NG31 6PZ 

 

 

 

Committee Members present 
 

 

Councillor Helen Crawford (Chairman) 
Councillor Ben Green (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Gloria Johnson 
Councillor John Dawson 
Councillor Phil Dilks 
Councillor Philip Knowles 
Councillor Susan Sandall 
Councillor Ian Stokes 
 

Other Members in attendance 
 

Councillor Ashley Baxter 
 

 

Cabinet Members in attendance 
 

Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew (Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor Economy) 
 
 

Officers in attendance  
 

Nicola McCoy-Brown (Director of Growth and Culture) 
Graham Watts (Assistant Director of Governance) 
Richard Wyles (Chief Finance Officer) 
Alison Hall-Wright (Assistant Director of Finance) 
Claire Moses (Head of Revenues, Benefits and Customer Service) 
Debbie Roberts (Organisation Development and Change) 
Sarah Downs (Democratic Services Officer) 

 

 

 
12. Public Speaking 

 
There were no comments from members of the public. 

 
13. Apologies for absence 

 
There were none. 

3

Agenda Item 4



 
 

 
14. Disclosure of interests 

 
There were none. 

 
15. Action notes of the meeting held on 27 June 2022 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 27 June 2022 were proposed, seconded and 
AGREED as a correct record. 

 
16. Updates from previous meeting 

 
The Committee noted the action notes from the meeting held on 27 June 2022. 

 
17. Finance Update Report:  April - June 2022 

 
During the current financial year, the Finance, Economic Development and 
Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee were to be provided with 
regular finance reports that monitored and assessed the current economic 
conditions for the Council.  This first report only showed actual costs incurred up to 
30 June.  Subsequent reports would show the projected outturn position as at 31 
March 2023.  
 
The report was presented by the Chief Finance Officer who confirmed that the 
budget carry forwards were to be confirmed subject to approval by Cabinet.  This 
had been subsequently approved at Cabinet on 12 July 2022.  There had been 
some amendments to the framework which were set out within the tables in the 
report. 
 
The Chief Finance Officer explained that the focus was currently on inflationary 
pressures due to an unprecedented and unforeseen increase in inflation, fuel and 
utility costs.  In a rural area such as South Kesteven, fuel consumption could not be 
significantly reduced, although the Council had ensured an optimum price for its 
usage.  The Council was notified that from April 2022, gas tariff rates would 
increase by 70% and electricity tariff rates would increase by 100% from October 
2022. 

 
The utility running of the public buildings and streetlighting were among significant 
costs and the staff move from the Council Offices was being accelerated but there 
was more work on a strategy to mitigate these costs.  An update was to be brought 
before the Committee at a future meeting. 
 
The creation of an inflation reserve of £500,000 was recommended for the General 
Fund to absorb potential cost pressures in the short-term but further expected 
increases remained a concern and additional monies would be required.  A 
potential pay award would add to the budgetary pressures, for example an increase 
of 1% would translate to an additional £120,000 and the Council was unable to rely 
on Government assistance. 

4



 
 

 
During discussion Members raised the following points: 

 

• The proposed action of the creation of an inflation reserve to mitigate the 
effects of inflation on the budget were welcomed, although it was understood 
that the reserve was currently insufficient and would require increasing to 
cope with future expected rises in inflation. 

 

• Could the Council identify savings to help with energy and transport costs? 
 

• What proportion of the budget was spent on fuel and transport and could it be 
ensured that staff continued to consider whether journeys were necessary or 
meetings could take place virtually instead? 

 
 

• Members acknowledged the difficulty in planning ahead in uncertain times and 
establishing objectives to be measured against.  It was suggested that more 
needed to be done to anticipate and prepare for the impact of future economic 
events. 

 

• Could the Council consider the selling of any assets to raise funds? 
 

• Clarification was sought on the Housing Revenue Account amount of interest 
payable.  

 
The Chief Finance Officer informed the Committee that a strategy was required in 
order to reduce the overall utility costs as the Council currently has a significant 
number of buildings and facilities where it is responsible for the operational costs.  
Many services, such as Waste Collection, had established procedures and 
processes in place that could not be amended quickly.  A number of reserves had 
been set up and transformational savings provided funding in the short-term.  The 
Officer clarified that the Housing Revenue Account was repaying a loan and this 
was shown in the table in the report.   
 
Decisions were being made in line with the advice received.  The Officer explained 
that borrowing to fund revenue expenditure is not an option and Council Tax, fees 
and charges have been set for the financial year.  The selling of assets was an 
ongoing consideration that was being looked into.  The energy and transport costs 
were to be significant but impossible to specifically confirm at this stage but an 
update would be brought before the Committee at a future date. 
 
AGREED: 

 
a) That the Committee reviewed and noted the actual 2022/23 position for 

the General Fund and HRA Revenue and Capital budgets as at the end of 
June 2022.  

 

5



 
 

18. Localised Council Tax Support Scheme 2023/2024 
 

The Head of Revenues, Benefits and Customer Service presented a report on the 
Council’s Local Council Tax Support Scheme. 
 
The Council Tax Benefit system was abolished on 31 March 2013 and replaced by 
the Local Council Tax Support Scheme (LCTSS).  The Scheme was to provide 
Council Tax Support to claimants of working age as pensioners and many 
vulnerable residents were protected under legislation.  The Scheme was to 
continue to be reviewed each year to ensure it continued to be fit for purpose. 
 
The cost of living had not yet resulted in an expected increase in applications for 
Council Tax Support and Discretionary (top-up) Payments.  This is as a result of 
other packages of support being provided in the form of Council Tax Energy rebate, 
Cost of Living payments, Pension Cost of Living payments, Disability Cost of Living 
payments and Household Support Fund.   
 
The Officer informed the Committee that there was uncertainty as to the impact on 
claimants of their move to Universal Credit payment, which is due to take place by 
the end of 2024.  It is unknown whether moving to Universal Credit will result in the 
Council Tax Support changing (increasing or decreasing) or staying the same. The 
Officer recommended that such uncertainties were difficult to model.  This led to the 
recommendation for a ‘no change’ scheme at this time. 
 
Consultation was required and this was to begin in August until October 2022.  All 
those in receipt of Council Tax Support will be included in the consultation and will 
be invited to provide feedback regarding the current scheme.  In November 2022, 
those findings were to be brought before the Finance, Economic Development and 
Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee and if approved by Council 
in January 2023 the scheme would be effective from 1 April 2023. 
 
During discussion, Members of the Committee raised the following points: 

 

• Members were generally in favour of the report.  It was acknowledged that 
pressure is on Local Government to assist residents through the cost-of-living 
crisis as Central Government was not fully functioning. 

 

• A Member asked why Special Constables were not mentioned within the 
report.  Were the Council keeping the concession for a third year? 
 

The Head of Revenues, Benefits and Customer Service confirmed that as the 
recommendation was for ‘no change’ to the Scheme, the Special Constable 
concession would continue.  The consultation was important in providing valuable 
feedback and a further recommendation could return to the Committee if it was 
required.   

 
 
 

6



 
 

 
AGREED: 
 
a) That the Committee noted the report and sought approval for public 

consultation of a ‘no change’ scheme. 
 

19. End of Year Performance 2021/22 
 

The South Kesteven Corporate Plan 2020-23 was approved by Council on 1 
October 2020. It was agreed by Council that actions, key performance indicators 
(KPIs) and targets would be developed by the relevant overview and scrutiny 
committee, which would retain oversight of the performance management 
arrangements at a strategic level. These actions and indicators were presented to 
this committee and agreed on 17 November 2020. 
 
The Mid-Year report for 2021/22 was presented to the Committee on 3 December 
2021 and outlined the performance against the Corporate Plan for the financial year 
to date and included the first annual review of all Corporate KPIs and contained 
recommendations for changes, additions, and removals. 
 
In summary: 

 

• 9 of the actions were rated Green. These were actions which were on or 

above target as planned.  

•   7 actions were rated as Amber, these were those off target by less than 10% 

or where milestone achievement is delayed but with resolution in place to be 

achieved within a reasonable timeframe.  

• 0 actions were rated Red. These were those falling significantly below target 

or overdue with no specific resolution date planned. 

• There have been no areas of significant under performance identified in this 

report, this was a positive improvement from the last report which had 1 

action rated as Red. 

 
Members discussed the following points: 

 

• Clarification was sought on the customer experience strategy.  A number of 
Members felt that customers were unhappy with response through the 
telephone system. 

• Confirmation on opening times at the Customer Services Centre was 
requested. 

• A Member asked if unanswered calls were logged within the telephone 
system. 

 
The Chief Finance Officer confirmed that the Customer Service Centre was 
currently open from 9am until 1pm daily and data suggested 8 out of 10 calls were 

7



 
 

currently answered.  The Officer informed the Committee that if there was a 
problem, this would be addressed and specific feedback was welcomed.  It was 
confirmed that the telephone system logged abandoned calls. 

 
 
AGREED: 

 
a) That the Committee noted the contents of the 2021/22 year-end 

performance report 
 
b) That Committee Members considered if any concerns highlighted by the 

report required additional investigation to be added to the work 
programme. 
 

20. Work Programme 2022 - 2023 
 

The Committee noted the contents of the Work Programme 2022 – 2023. 
 
It was clarified that the LeisureSK report on energy contracts was deferred to the 
September 28 meeting and an update on the Localised Council Support Scheme 
2022/23 was added to the meeting on November 22 along with a report on the mid-
year Corporate Plan key performance indicators. 
 
A request was made that data relating to the Customer Services telephony system, 
particularly information relating to the amount of calls answered be brought before 
the Committee in September 2022. 
 
ACTION 1: 
 
That the Work Programme 2022-2023 was updated as requested.  
 
ACTION 2: 
 
That the Committee received recent data on the calls handled within the 
Customer Services telephony system at the next meeting in September 2022. 

 
21. Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special circumstance 

decides is urgent 
 

There were none. 
 

22. Close of meeting 
 

The Chairman closed the meeting at 11:40. 
 
 

8



ACTION SHEET 
 

Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

To provide members with an update on actions agreed at the meeting held on 19 July 2022.  

Min 
No 

Agenda Item Action Assigned to Comment/Status Deadline 

19 28. End of Year 
Performance 2021-
2022 

That the Committee receive recent 
data on the calls handled within the 
Customer Services telephony 
system. 

Head of 
Revenues, 
Benefits and 
Customer Services 

Will be reported to the September 
2022 meeting of the Committee as a 
verbal update. 

27 
September 
2022 

20 29. Work Programme 
2022 - 2023 

That the Work Programme be 
updated to reflect the addition of the 
Corporate Plan Key Performance 
Indicators Update at the November 
Committee meeting and the Leisure 
SK report to be deferred to 
September 2022. 

 

Democratic 
Services Officer 

Work Programme has been updated 
to reflect this.  The Leisure SK report 
is to be heard at Companies 
Committee in September 2022. 

 
Complete 

 

9

A
genda Item

 5



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

       

Finance, Economic 
Development and Corporate 
Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
 

27 September 2022 
 
Cllr Kelham Cooke, Leader of the 
Council 
 
 

 

 

Draft ICT Strategy 2022-2025 
 

Report Author 

Alison Hall-Wright, Assistant Director of Finance 

  alison.hall-wright@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

To provide the Committee with details of the updated ICT strategy 

 

 

Recommendations 

 

That the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Committee: 

1. Reviews and provides feedback on the draft ICT Strategy prior to it’s 
formal approval. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11

Agenda Item 7

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No  

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All  

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, staffing, 

community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s declaration 

of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 The annual budget for all the ICT software is £420k and the breakdown of the 

various systems are shown at Appendix B.  There are no direct financial implications 

associated with this report.  Upgrades and improvements to ICT infrastructure and 

systems will be supported by a business case and if approved budget will be 

allocated accordingly.  

 

Completed by: Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer 

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 It is considered best Governance Practice to have an update ICT Strategy but 

there are no legal requirements or implications. 

 

Completed by: Alan Robinson, Deputy Chief Executive 

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1  The Council’s Corporate Plan (2020 – 2023) identifies High Performing Council as 

a key priority.  To support the achievement of this priority the Council has produced 

an updated ICT Strategy which provides details regarding the strategic direction of 

ICT which seeks to maximise functionality, value for money and quality customer 

experience.  The current strategy covered the period 2017 to 2019 and set out a 

direction of travel towards cloud-based solutions which this strategy builds on.  

 

2.2 The Strategy focuses on two key principles which aim to create an improved ICT 

experience for all users.  The key principles are: 

12



 

• The ICT platform – this principle aims to ensure that end-to-end interactions 

are as simple and streamlined as possible as this will create an improved 

customer experience. 

 

• A digital workforce – this principle focuses on enabling our employees to 

have access to the right tools to do their job and be confident in maximising 

the use and benefits of technology in daily work. 
 

2.3 The ICT platform and digital workforce principles complement each other in the 

delivery of a successful, transformational ICT service.  The ICT platform principle 

aims to modernise our processes and systems and the digital workforce principle 

ensures employees have the relevant skills and tools to make the best use of the 

technologies available.  

 

2.4  A number of themes have been developed to support the achievement of both the 

key principles and the Corporate Plan by aiming to deliver the very best, easiest 

to use, efficient and innovative services to our residents and customers.  The key 

themes are summarised in Table 1, pages 10 and 11 of Appendix A provide further 

details of each theme. 

 

 Table 1 – Key Themes 

 

Theme Focus of the theme 

Engage Keeping our finger on the pulse of the organisation. 

Optimise Technology services will work when we need them and how they 
are needed to work.  The stability and security of our technology 
estate and data will continue to be a priority. 

Empower Helping the organisation to make the best use of our technology 
services.  Enabling wider, whole system issues to be addressed 
through greater collaboration and connectivity with partners. 

Transform Partnering to help transform our processes and culture in the 
context of the opportunities of the internet era. 

 

2.5 A key aim of the strategy is to move to cloud based and hosted systems wherever 

possible and where it is considered financially viable to do so.  Appendix B 

provides details of the current Council systems and whether they are cloud based 

or hosted by the system provider or are hosted by the Council.  A roadmap and 

supporting action plan will be developed from this information which will provide a 

timeline for moving to cloud based or hosted systems where available.   

 

2.6 Moving to cloud based and hosted systems will reduce the infrastructure and 

support requirements for the ICT service meaning the team can focus on 

identifying digital technology solutions that are available to support future service 

delivery models.  This will ensure that the both the vision of the ICT strategy and 

the strategic objectives of the organisation are achieved. 

13



 

2.6 Technology is continually changing and improving so the strategy and associated 

activity roadmaps and plans will be regularly reviewed and updated accordingly.  

This will ensure that the direction of travel remains relevant and aligned with 

customer, service area and organisational needs. 

 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 The 2022 ICT Strategy provides key principles and themes for the Council to 

consider when investing in ICT Infrastructure and Systems.  The Strategy will 

support our employees  in gaining the relevant skills and tools to benefit from the 

technologies available and will support the improvement of customer interaction 

with the Council. 

 

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 The Council could decide not to adopt the 2022 ICT strategy but this would mean 

there would be no framework available when making decisions regarding future ICT 

investment. 

 

5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 It is good practice for the Council to have an ICT strategy as this provides strategic 

direction for the organisation when investing in ICT infrastructure and systems.   

 

 

8. Appendices 
 

8.1 Appendix A – 2022 – 2025 ICT Strategy 

 Appendix B – Current ICT Systems 

 

 

 

 

14



2022

ICT Strategy

15

Appendix A



2

ICT Strategy 2022

16



3

1. Introduction
1.1. PURPOSE
This document provides an overview of the ICT 
strategy for South Kesteven District Council. The ICT Strategy is shaped 
to support the next phase of business transformation with an emphasis 
on delivering increasingly joined up public services that are effective, 
affordable and designed arounf the needs of service users

1.2. SCOPE
The objective of this document is to:

 

› Describe the ICT vision for South Kesteven
District Council.

› Demonstrate the close link between the ICT
strategy and the council’s business priorities. 

› Describe the key strategic areas required to
realise the vision and align ICT with the business. 

The scope and ambition of this strategy is based on 
innovation, strengthened governance and working
together across all services and partners to achieve 
its objectives.

ICT Strategy 2022

17



4

ICT Strategy 2022

2. Executive Summary
Over the past ten years there has been a significant 
shift in the digital technology we use within the 
organisation. This technology is now a fundamental 
and essential part of the running of our Council.
Our recent technology initiatives culminated in the 
introduction of new digital tools and technologies
to enable us to work in a more agile and modern 
way. Building on the success of the previous ICT 
Strategy we are now looking to further strengthen 
our approach by empowering services to exploit
the transformational opportunities that digital tools 
and technologies offer, ensuring that we are able to 
offer the very best service to our customers. Whilst 
we have bold ambitions for our digital tools and 
technologies, we will continue to have a robust and 
proactive approach to our cyber-security measures.

We remain engaged regionally and nationally in 
cyber security activity. We align closely to the work 
of the National Cyber Security Centre (NCSC) with 
regards to our approach to cyber-security and
are members of the East Midlands Government 
Warning, Advice and Reporting Point (EMGWARP). 
This strategy looks to underpin the organisation’s 
continued drive for efficiency and transformation 
through digitalisation. This will be supported by

working with services to optimise the delivery of our 
technology services.

This ICT Strategy and the delivery plan is 
underpinned by the ICT roadmap which sets out
the strategic direction of the deployment of the ICT 
estate which seeks to maximise functionality, value 
for money and quality customer experience.

2.1. BUSINESS CONTEXT

The ICT Strategy is formulated within the financial 
framework set out in the Medium Term Financial 
Plan which sets the financial context for the 
organisation and describes the budget challenges 
we face.

The ICT Strategy is designed to support the 
organisational wide transformation and digitalisation 
agenda working towards maximising business 
efficency.

18



5

ICT Strategy 2022

CORPORATE PLAN

The Corporate Plan sets out our vision and priorities 
for the District. The ICT Strategy and associated ICT 
& Digital Service plan has been designed against
the key themes of:

› Globally connected
› Locally committed
› Delivering our priorities with fewer resources
› Managing performance and measuring progress

National Cyber Strategy 2022 - The new National 
Cyber Strategy is in place to ensure that the UK 
remains confident, capable and resilient in this fast-
moving digital world; and that we continue to adapt, 
innovate and invest in order to protect and promote 
our interests in cyberspace.

It should be noted that technology is only one 
component of change: it can only deliver expected 
organisational benefits and efficiencies in conjunc-
tion with:
› Business processes that are efficient and take a

“digital-by-design” approach.

This means that our processes are fundamentally
transformed to take full advantage of the tools, 
techniques and technologies that the internet-era 
has to offer.

› Adoption of new ways of working by the end
user be that employee, customer or partner 
organisation

19



6

ICT Strategy 2022

20



7

3. Strategic principles
3.1. OUR VISION
The vision for our ICT Strategy is made up of two 
key principles, both of which focus on building on 
the technology foundation created by previous 
versions of this strategy.

Our first component of the strategy is the 
ICT platform.

THE PRINCIPLES ARE:

› Redesign our services around the needs of the
people using them

› Break our dependence on inflexible and
expensive technology that doesn’t join up 
effectively, in favour of modular common 
components and open data standards

› Design safe, secure and useful ways of sharing
information to build trust among our partners 
and residents

› Demonstrate digital leadership, creating 
the conditions for genuine organisational
transformation

› Embed a culture that values, incentives
and expects open working wherever we
can, sharing our plans and experience, working

collaboratively with other organisations, and 
learning and adopting good practice

The ICT platform principle should for end-to-end 
interactions be as simple and streamlined as 
possible. Any process complexity should be hidden 
from our customers.

We should aspire for all our services to be 
redesigned to take full advantage of the latest and 
best digital tools and technology available. In doing 
so we will learn from the very best, most useable   
digital services that people use in their day-to-day 
lives, bringing those principles to our services.

We will do this by:

› Using shared and common components such
as a standard payment or booking platform as 
an example. Where components already exist 
nationally or regionally these will be considered
first for adoption

ICT Strategy 2022

21



8

› Providing the platforms to enable streamlining 
of business processes. Allowing them to be 
redesigned as digital by design making the
best use of technology, automating as much as 
we can

› Maximising the use of the data we hold ensuring
it is accurate, secure and can enrich and 
improve the end user experience

Our second principle is:

A Digital Workforce – enabling our staff to have
an access to the right tools to do their job and be 
confident in maximising the use and benefits of 
technology in daily work.

We need to continue a rapid change in culture and 
mind-set to demonstrate a clear commitment to 
embracing IT innovation and to provide a clear 
vision for a more digital future; one that offers a 
vibrant and exciting environment for not only for 
our current workforce, but the up-and-coming 
generation of digital talent.

We will do this by:
› Providing the right technology and devices so 
     that teams can work in different places and
     can access the systems they need, when
     they need to thus supporting an agile and
     flexible workforce.

ICT Strategy 2022

› Simplifying processes and systems for the
benefit of customers and teams

› Supporting our employees at every level of the
organisation to gain or maintain the digital skills, 
confidence and commitment to adopt a digital
by design approach

› Encouraging and enabling collaborative working
across boundaries to deliver services and meet 
customer needs

These two strategic principles complement 
each other in the delivery of a successful, 
transformational ICT service.

The ICT platform seeks to streamline and 
modernise our processes and systems with our 
digital workforce principle ensuring employees have 
the relevant skills and tools to make the best use of 
the technologies available.

22



9

ICT Strategy 2022

3.2. ICT STRATEGY THEMES

Based on our vision, this is what we need to do to 
achieve our objectives. This has been split 
into themes, each of which has an evolving 
roadmap of activity supporting it. 

The themes will not only address organisational 
pressures but also be driven and updated by wider 
technology industry demands and trends. It is 
important to note that across all our themes the 
focus is to directly support the Corporate Plan by 
delivering the very best, easiest to use, efficient and 
innovative services to our residents and customers.

ICTPlatform Digital 
Workforce

23



10

ICT Strategy 2022

OUR THEMES ARE:

Engage

Keeping our finger on the pulse 
of the organisation

We are re-establishing ICT business relationship 
management with services to ensure ICT & Digital 
empowers and enables individual service business 
plans.  We look to work closer with our partners, 
peers and likeminded organisations to share 
learning, platforms and solutions.

Optimise

Technology services will work when we need them 
and how they are needed to work. The stability 
and security of our technology estate and data will 
continue to be a priority

We will ensure that the day-to-day operation and 
use of ICT is optimised in terms of availability, 
resilience, security and performance.

We will do this through consolidating and 
modernising our technology estate. Reviewing 
service level agreements and our key performance 
indicators. We will optimise the systems we use in 
line with the local digital declaration to ensure that 
they work across the most popular, commonly used 
platforms. This will help ensure that integration 
with partners, peers, stakeholders and like-minded 
organisation is possible.

24



11

ICT Strategy 2022

Empower

Helping the organisation make 
the best use of our technology 
services. Enabling wider, whole 
system issues to be addressed 
through greater collaboration 
and connectivity with partners

We will ensure that our workforce, including our 
employees and elected member cohorts, have 
access to the right digital tools and skills to do
their jobs in the most efficient way. This will directly 
support, benefit and enhance the services we 
provide to our customers and residents.

We will do this by supporting digital skills. 
Continuing to modernise our technology estate and 
making greater use of our data warehouse and the 
organisational insight that this enables.

Transform

Partnering to help transform our 
processes and culture in the 
context of the opportunities of 
the internet era

We will support a digital process development plan 
across the organisation making the best, most 
innovative use of new technology. How we best 
serve our customers will be at the heart of our 
transformation and everything we do.

We will do this by proactively assessing, 
incorporating and developing the latest
technologies such as Artificial Intelligence (AI), 
Machine Learning, Automation, Blockchain, Internet 
of Things (IOT) etc.

25



12

ICT Strategy 2022

5. How and what will we 
deliver on this strategy?
Due to the amount of change required and the 
pace at which technology evolves, this strategy and 
associated activity roadmaps and plans need to 
be continually updated, managed and monitored. 
This is required to ensure that the roadmap and 
technology direction of travel remains relevant and 
in line with the organisational needs. The Service 
Plan will be reviewed quarterly and updated 
annually, linking through to associated project and 
programme documentation. It will be the centralised 
location for updates against ICT roadmap activity.

Technology is one of the foundations to digital 
transformation. However, transformation, business 
change or service redesign cannot be delivered 
through technology alone. The benefits of digital 
technologies stem from how they are integrated 
with people and processes, leading to business 
change and innovation. 

Given the speed of innovation in the digital 
marketplace, keeping pace with change and 
understanding how they can enable service 
transformation is difficult. 

Our focus will be identifying digital technologies 
available to services and bringing forward solutions 
that can act as a guide to structure strategic 
decisions with services on how to integrate these 
digital technologies in to their future service delivery 
models. 

26



13

ICT Strategy 2022

27



Contact Details
 

South Kesteven District Council
01476 40 60 80  

8www.southkesteven.gov.uk

28



Appendix B 

Software Information 

Hosted On-Site  Description Opportunity for Cloud/Hosted 

Advanced E-

Financials 

Finance Management and 

Eprocurement software 

Not available with existing 

system 

NEC Revenues and 

Benefits 

Council Tax and Housing 

Benefit Software 

Not available with existing 

system 

Idox Uniform and TLC Planning, Building Control, 

Land Charges and Licensing 

Software 

Hosting is available 

NEC OHMS Housing Management 

Software 

Due to be replaced by Aareon 

Yuneo Cloud system in April 

2023 

Civica W2 Document and Process 

Management Software 

Not available with existing 

system 

Civica Xpress Election Management 

Software 

Not available with existing 

system 

Civica APP Environmental Health 

Software 

Not available with existing 

system 

Civica Modern.Gov Agenda and Meeting 

Management Software 

Not available with existing 

system 

 

 

 

 

29

Appendix B



Hosted Off-Site  Description 
 

Cloud Hosted Description 

Yotta Mayrise Waste 

Management 

Software 

 
MHR Itrent HR and Payroll 

Software 

   
StatMap Earthlight GIS Mapping Software 

   
Statmap SNN Street Name and 

Numbering software 

   
Meritec ESB CRM and Process 

Management Software 

   
Adelante  Income Management 

Software 

   
Spektrix Ticket Booking 

Software 

   
House-on-the-Hill 

Service Desk 

IT Helpdesk Software 

   
Sign-in App Signing in and Desk 

Booking Software 

 

 

30



 
 

       

Finance, Economic 
Development and Corporate 

Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee  

 
 

27th September 2022 
 
Report of Councillor Kelham Cooke, 
The Leader of the Council  
 
 

 

 

Update on St Martins Park Demolition Works  
 

Report Author 

Debbie Roberts, Head of Projects, Policy and Performance  

  Debbie.roberts@southkesteven.gov.uk  

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

To provide the Committee an update regarding the demolition works at the former 

Cummins factory, known as the St Martins Park development scheme and next steps 

with remediating the site prior to its disposal.   

 

 

Recommendations 

 

That the Committee: 

1. Notes the update regarding the project 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

31

Agenda Item 8

mailto:Debbie.roberts@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No 

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

Growth and our economy 

 

Which wards are impacted? Stamford St Marys  

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 The demolition contract was awarded to GF Tomlinson via the SCAPE framework 

and the contract sum of £1.303m is monitored monthly as part of the client 

meetings. There are additional items that have been instructed to the contract that 

were unforeseen at the time of award, in accordance with the financial regulations 

and Constitution the value is below that requiring additional budget from Council 

currently. A subsequent report seeking further budget may be required should this 

exceed £200,000 and as identified later in the report Council approval will be 

sought for the remediation costs (once known).  

 

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 The contract is reviewed monthly, there are no legal requirements.  

 

Risk and Mitigation 

 

1.3 Construction risks are reviewed monthly as part of the project and mitigation 

identified where possible.  

 

Health and Safety 

 

1.4 Construction Health and Safety is reviewed, and spot check visits conducted by 

the contractors Health and Safety advisors.  

 

 

32



 

2. Background to the Report 

 
In March 2019 the Council purchased land at Barnack Road, Stamford, which adjoins 

land owned by Burghley Land Limited (BLL), a wholly owned subsidiary of Burghley 

House Preservation Trust. The land was purchased by the Council as being 

strategically important to the Council’s growth ambitions in Stamford.  

 

The development is also included in the Corporate Plan 2020-2023 with a key action 

for its delivery under the corporate priority of ‘Growth and Our Economy’.  

 

These adjacent land holdings, known as St Martin's Park, extend to approximately 14 

hectares (36 acres). The sites have been marketed for a mixed-use development 

including commercial, residential and retirement units along with associated public 

open space, car parking, retail and infrastructure. These uses are subject to an 

outline planning consent which has been approved by the Local Planning Authority 

and has a completed Section 106 agreement which includes demolition of the 

Cummins factory and associated buildings.  

 

A map below is of the land known as St Martin’s Park, the land edged red is in the 

Council’s ownership and shows the extensive number of buildings requiring 

demolition.  

 

  
 

 

At full Council on the 27th January 2022 the Council approved the following 

recommendations:  

 

33



1. Council approves the budget of £1.303m in order to provide funding for the 
demolition of the buildings at St.Martins Park Stamford.   

 
2. Approve the demolition of the buildings and delegate authority to the Chief 

Executive, in consultation with the Leader of the Council and S151 Officer to enter 

into a contract with GF Tomlinson to undertake the works within the allocated 

budget.  

 

3. To note that at a future Council meeting further approval will be required for the 

remediation costs for the land and seek approval for the disposal of the asset for a 

capital receipt.  

4. Council is asked to approve a reserve movement of £500k from the Local 

Priorities Reserve to the Regeneration Reserve in order to ensure there is 

sufficient funding in the Regeneration Reserve to finance the demolition works of 

£1.303m. 
 

A contract with GF Tomlinson Ltd was entered into on the 18th March 2022 for the sum of 

£1,303,981.92 and contractors were mobilised on the 18th April 2022 after obtaining 

discharge of the relevant planning conditions required before commencement. 

 

There were numerous buildings on site requiring demolition after they were soft stripped 

internally plus all asbestos was removed   A plan below shows the scale of the demolition 

required.  

 
 

In the original programme produced by GF Tomlinson the scheme was broken down into 

phases with demolition works anticipated to take 36 weeks to complete. To monitor this 

34



programme, the contract sum and progress on site monthly client meetings have taken 

place. A report is issued to the client from the contractors, a site walk around and then 

formal meeting takes place when the Project Manager and Contract Manager present 

their update. A Quantity Surveyor from GF Tomlinson is also present to discuss the 

finances and any additional Instructions are formally issued. 

 

Appended to this report are client reports supplied to the Council from the contractors 

and current programme dated 2nd September 2022. 

  

The plan below shows the areas completed (as of 2.9.22). The only buildings left on site 

currently are the 1904 building and part of the office attached to it.  

 

 
As of the latest client report (appendix 5) there has been Project Manager Instructions 

(PMI) for additional works totalling £192,630.23. These works include surveys, 

unexpected additional asbestos removal and utility disconnections therefore not included 

in the original contract sum.  

 

As part of the 27th January 2022 Council report it was highlighted that once the 

remediation strategy has been agreed and costed then a subsequent report requesting 

the budget for the remediation works will be required by Council (currently on the forward 

plan for November Council).  

 

35



For completeness of this report these works to demolish and remediate the site are 

required to be finished prior to selling the site to developer parties. The sales contracts 

are due to be exchanged in one month and the completion will take place upon vendors 

works being finished.  

 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 This report is to provide Members with an update on progress and provide 

assurance that there is substantial governance arrangements in place.  

 

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 None – the site requires demolition and remediation prior to the disposal of the 

asset.  

 

5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 To provide an update, there are no recommendations for the Committee.  

 

6. Consultation 
 

6.1 Consultation was undertaken prior to and as part of the planning process.  

 

6.2      GF Tomlinson produce monthly residents update letters and circulate via these 

leaflet drops.  

 

7. Background Papers 
 

7.1 Council report 27th January 2022  

 

8. Appendices 
 

8.1 Monthly Client reports from GF Tomlinson  

Appendix 1 – May 2022 

Appendix 2 – June 2022 

Appendix 3 – July 2022 

Appendix 4 – August 2022 

Appendix 5 – September 2022  

Appendix 6 – Contract programme  

 

 

36



 
 

 
 
 

 
PROGRESS REPORT 1  

 

For 
 

 
 
 

17.5.2022 issue No 1  

 
Barnack Road, Stamford – Demolition of Old 

Cummins Factory Site 
 
 
Contents 
 

1.  Programme 
1.1 Particulars 
1.2 Progress in the period 
1.3 Programme Status 
1.4 Programme 

 
2. Design 

2.1 Architectural 
2.2 Structural 
2.3 Planning 
2.4 Building Control 
2.5 Information Required 

 
3. Health, Safety & Environmental 

3.1 General Health & Safety Matters 
3.2 Environmental 
 

4. Utilities 

37

https://pre.lincolnshire.gov.uk/


 

 pg. 2 

 
5. Commercial Report 

5.1 Valuations 
5.2 Variations and Instructions 
5.3 Subcontract Procurement 
5.4 Local Spend 
 

6. Other Matters 
6.1 Relationship with Client 
6.2 Relationship with Neighbours / other parties 
6.3 Considerate Constructors Scheme 
6.4 Progress Photographs 

 

 
 
1.0 Programme 
 
1.1 Particulars  
 

• Delivery Agreement Start Date:   18.04.2022  

• Access Date:      18.04.2022 

• Contract Duration:     36 weeks  

• Completion Date:     10.01.2023 

• Planned Completion Date:    10.01.2023 

• Programme:      D1797 Rev B 

• Report Compiled:      16.5.2022 

 
1.2 Progress in the period 
 
Delivery Stage (Phase 1A) 
Pre-construction lead in time - 100% 
Submit Section 80 notice - 100% 
Prepare & issue construction phase plan - 100% 
Start on Site - 100% 
Principal designer - 100% 
Construction activity demolition works (Phase 1A) - 10% 
Works Completion (phase 1A) - 0% 
 

Delivery Stage (Phase 1B) 
Network Rail submission of BAPA 100% 
Execution of BAPA agreement 100% 
Liaison with Network Rail, agree method & scope of works with NR 50% 
Liaison with Western Power 50% 
Existing Utilities terminated at or outside site boundaries (by client & Contractor) 25% 
Construction activity (Phase 1B) - 0% 
Works complete 0% 
 

 

38



 

 pg. 3 

Delivery Stage (Phase 2) works not part of COG Report 
Further Ground Investigations - 5% 
Contamination strategy & method statement Updates (phase 2) - 0% 
Material Management Plan - 0% 
Receive Contamination strategy (phase 2) - 0% 
Submit any updates to Contamination Strategy to planning (Risk item) - 0% 
Contamination / Remediation works 0% 
Topographical Completion Survey - 0%  
Planned Completion - 0% 
Terminal Float - 0% 
Completion - 0% 

 
1.2.1 Planned works not achieved in construction period  
 
1.3 Programme Status 
  

• We are working to construction issued programme  
 

 
 
1.3.1     Weather Record 
 

No Lost days due to weather  
 
 

1.4 Programme 

 
See Attachment Rev B construction programme 
 

2022-03-07 - Rev B - 

Barnack Road Stamford.pdf

Phase 1A Stamford 

Progress Report 2022-05-16.pdf

Stamford Marked 

Site Plan 2022-05-16.docx

39



 

 pg. 4 

2.0 Design 
 

 
2.1 Architectural 
 
No Architectural design drawings as this project is civils/structural based.  
 
 

 
2.1 Principal Designer – CDM Regulations 2015 
 

Nigel Brook GradIOSH, MCIOB 

NB-HSA Ltd 
Health and Safety 
Risk Management 

07882 760216 
nigel@nbhsa.co.uk 
 
F10 issue and construction phase H,S&E plan issued and reviewed.  
 

 
2.2 Structural & Civil (Drainage Works) 
 
Stuart Lever 

Director 

 
8 Pride Point Drive, Pride Park, Derby, DE24 8BX 
Tel:         01332 364675 
Fax:        01332 344780 
Mob:     07795 560187 
Email:    stuart.lever@jacksonpl.co.uk 

 
Drawing and specification update to construction status.  
 
 
 

2.3 Mechanical & Electrical (on-site and off-site services) 
 
On-site - Electric 
11kva isolation and disconnections complete along with certification. 
Low voltage isolations and disconnections complete along with certification. 
PV disconnected but need to be remove by Electrical Contractor (Grantham Electrical) 2 weeks work 
instruction required – Urgent  
Note: 
11kva Western Power (National Grid) live sub-station on site and 11kva supplies from the western boundary 
live - Marked on site and recorded.  Sub-Station Building to remain on site and moved by the developers 
following the contract. 
1 live LV supply serving the Pump House from Barnack Road – Marked on site and recorded. 

40

tel:07882%20760216
mailto:nigel@nbhsa.co.uk
mailto:stuart.lever@jacksonpl.co.uk


 

 pg. 5 

11kva timber pylons to the western boundary – Live. Power outage required to remove building and 
hard standing within close vicinity. 
33kva pylons on site and overhead lines – Live. Power outage required to remove building and hard standing 
within close vicinity. 
     
 
On-site – Gas 
Disconnection of gas and purged complete with certification issued. 
Gas Meters and on-site gas utility still live to gas meters. 
 
On-site Water 
Site capped off in pavement. 
Currently obtaining water from a property outside the site boundary by agreement, meter readings taken. 
 
On-site Sewers 
Live Sewers from houses on Barnack Road and housing development to the western boundary to the 
pumping house - marked on site and recorded. 
Live pumping main from pump house along Network Rail boundary - marked on site and recorded.    
 
Telecoms BT 
Update required. 

 
 

2.4 Planning 
 
No planning issue, all pre-commencement planning has been applied for and the approved.  
 

 

2.5 Building Regulations 
 

Section 80 issued 
 

 

2.6 Information Required from Client 
 
No information required at present  
 

 
3.0 Health, Safety & Environmental 
  
3.1 General Health & Safety Matters 
 

• Visits by GFT safety advisor: 1 
 

•  HSE Site sub-contractor visits: 1 pre-contract and 1 contract review issued. 
 

• Client SKDC on going site attendance as and when required encouraged.   
 

• Principle Designer on going site attendance as and when required encouraged 
 

• Accidents in the period: 0 
 

• Total Accidents: 0 
 

• Near miss incidents in the period: 0 
 
 
 

41



 

 pg. 6 

3.2 Environmental 
 
GFT will continue to monitor all areas and plant and follow GFT procedures  
Delta Simons’ are employed to develop the MMP and REM Strat.  
 

GFT-01855_BarnackR

d%252CStamford-Demolition.pdf
 

 
4.0 Utilities 
 
See table below for status of each utility service. 
 

 
Utility Status 

Electric Wester Power (National Grid) consulted, and meetings held on site.  

Gas Cadent consulted 

Water & 
Sewers Anglian Water consulted, and meetings held on site. 

Telecom Notified and awaiting update. 

 
 
5.0 Commercial 
 
 
5.1 Interim Valuations 
 
Valuation Number 1 submitted on 30/04/2022 for the value of £65,325.80 nett. Awaiting 
receipt of PM’s Certificate. 

 
5.2 Compensation Events 

  
Compensation Events issued to date: 
 

- CE1 – Initial Remediation Scope – Issued on 18/03/2022 
- CE2 – Bat and Bird Survey – Issued on 25/03/2022 
- CE3 – Repair Works Following Break-in – Issued on 30/03/2022 
- CE4 – Remaining Remediation Scope – Issued on 11/04/2022 
- CE5 – Lead Paint Survey – Issued on 07/04/2022 – NO PMI REQUIRED 
- CE6 – Service Disconnections – Issued on 16/05/2022 
- CE7 – Type 1 Material – Issued on 27/04/2022 
- CE8 – Planning Conditions 
- CE9 – Additional Tree Removal – Issued on 11/05/2022 

 
 

Copy of D1797 - 

Compensation Event Tracker.xls
 

42



 

 pg. 7 

 

 
5.3 Subcontract Procurement 
 
The following subcontract orders have been placed to date: 
 

- Mick George          Demolition Contractor 

- Grantham Electrical     Low Voltage Electrical Disconnections             

- EPES       11kva Electrical Disconnection                           

- Musson Heating           Gas Disconnections 

- JPT       Temporary works, Civil & Structural 

Engineers                                                                                                     

- Delta Simons’     Remediation Consultants and Testing 

 
 
 
5.4 Early Warning Notice Register 
 

EWN 1 - Bat and Bird Survey – Issued on 25/03/2022 
EWN 2 - Pre-commencement planning condition discharge – Issued on 24/04/2022 
EWN 3 – 11kva Overhead Cables – Issued on 09/05/2022 
 
 

5.5 PMI`s. 
 
PMI 001- Initial Remediation Scope – Issued on 29/03/2022 - £27,571.70 
PMI 002 – Bat and Bird Survey – Issued on 29/03/2022 - £1,585.64 
PMI 003 – Repair Works Following Break-in – Issued on 30/03/2022 - £7,351.47 
PMI 004 – Remaining Remediation Scope – Issued on 11/04/2022 - £50,473.50 
 

    

    

 6.0 Other Matters 
 
 
6.1 Relationships with neighbours and other parties 
 
Letter drop to neighbours’ issue and no comments to date.  
No comments received during construction, all relationships with all parties good. 
 

  
6.2 Relationship with Client 
 
The site team can confirm that Regular communications are taking place.    
 
Regular informal meetings are also to taking place. 
 
 
 
 
 

43



 

 pg. 8 

.6.4 Progress Photographs 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

44



 
 

 
 
 

 
PROGRESS REPORT 2  

 

For 
 

 
 
 

6.6.2022 issue No 2  

 
Barnack Road, Stamford – Demolition of Old 

Cummins Factory Site 
 
 
Contents 
 

1.  Programme 
1.1 Particulars 
1.2 Progress in the period 
1.3 Programme Status 
1.4 Programme 
 

2. Design 
2.1 Architectural 
2.2 Structural 
2.3 Planning 
2.4 Building Control 
2.5 Information Required 

 
3. Health, Safety & Environmental 

3.1 General Health & Safety Matters 
3.2 Environmental 
 

4. Utilities 

45



 

 pg. 2 

 
5. Commercial Report 

5.1 Valuations 
5.2 Variations and Instructions 
5.3 Subcontract Procurement 
5.4 Local Spend 
 

6. Other Matters 
6.1 Relationship with Client 
6.2 Relationship with Neighbours / other parties 
6.3 Considerate Constructors Scheme 
6.4 Progress Photographs 

 
 
 
1.0 Programme 
 
1.1 Particulars  
 
 Delivery Agreement Start Date:   18.04.2022  
 Access Date:      18.04.2022 
 Contract Duration:     36 weeks  
 Completion Date:     10.01.2023 
 Planned Completion Date:    10.01.2023 
 Programme:      D1797 Construction programme as 

attached 
 Report Compiled:      6.6.2022 
 
1.2 Progress in the period 
 
Delivery Stage (Phase 1A) 
Pre-construction lead in time - 100% 
Submit Section 80 notice - 100% 
Prepare & issue construction phase plan - 100% 
Start on Site - 100% 
Principal designer - 100% 
Construction activity demolition works (Phase 1A) - 25% 
Works Completion (phase 1A) - 0% 
 
Delivery Stage (Phase 1B) 
Network Rail submission of BAPA 100% 
Execution of BAPA agreement 100% 
Liaison with Network Rail, agree method & scope of works with NR 55% 
Liaison with Western Power 55% 
Existing Utilities terminated at or outside site boundaries (by client & Contractor) 25% 
Construction activity (Phase 1B) - 5% 
Works complete 0% 
 

46



 

 pg. 3 

 
Delivery Stage (Phase 2) works not part of COG Report 
Further Ground Investigations - 5% 
Contamination strategy & method statement Updates (phase 2) - 0% 
Material Management Plan - 0% 
Receive Contamination strategy (phase 2) - 0% 
Submit any updates to Contamination Strategy to planning (Risk item) - 0% 
Contamination / Remediation works 0% 
Topographical Completion Survey - 0%  
Planned Completion - 0% 
Terminal Float - 0% 
Completion - 0% 
 
1.2.1 Planned works not achieved in construction period  
 
1.3 Programme Status 
  

 We are working to construction issued programme  
 
 
 
1.3.1     Weather Record 
 

No Lost days due to weather  
 
 

1.4 Programme 
 
See Attached D1797 Stamford Contract programme 3.6.22. 
 
See attached programme with progress as of 3.6.22 
 

47



 

 pg. 4 

2.0 Design 
 
 
2.1 Architectural 
 
No Architectural design drawings as this project is civils/structural based.  
 
 
 
2.1 Principal Designer – CDM Regulations 2015 
 
Nigel Brook GradIOSH, MCIOB 

NB-HSA Ltd 
Health and Safety 
Risk Management 
07882 760216 
nigel@nbhsa.co.uk 
 
F10 issue and construction phase H,S&E plan issued and reviewed.  
 
 
2.2 Structural & Civil (Drainage Works) 
 
Stuart Lever 
Director 

 
8 Pride Point Drive, Pride Park, Derby, DE24 8BX 
Tel:         01332 364675 
Fax:        01332 344780 
Mob:     07795 560187 
Email:    stuart.lever@jacksonpl.co.uk 
 
Drawing and specification update to construction status.  
 
Temporary works design for office block v 1904 to be progressed 
 
 
 
2.3 Mechanical & Electrical (on-site and off-site services) 
 
On-site - Electric 
11kva isolation and disconnections complete along with certification. 
Low voltage isolations and disconnections complete along with certification. 
PV disconnected but need to be remove by Electrical Contractor (Grantham Electrical) 2 weeks work 
instruction required – Urgent  
Note: 
11kva Western Power (National Grid) live sub-station on site and 11kva supplies from the western boundary 
live - Marked on site and recorded.  Sub-Station Building to remain on site and moved by the developers 
following the contract. 

48



 

 pg. 5 

1 live LV supply serving the Pump House from Barnack Road – Marked on site and recorded. 
11kva timber pylons to the western boundary – Live. Power outage required to remove building and hard 
standing within close vicinity. 
33kva pylons on site and overhead lines – Live. Power outage required to remove building and hard standing 
within close vicinity. 
     
 
On-site – Gas 
Disconnection of gas and purged complete with certification issued. 
Gas Meter now disconnected to 2 inch pipe. 
2 inch gas pipe to be disconnected 20.6.22 
Gas meter and IP main disconnection to be disconnected by the client 
 
On-site Water 
We have connected onto the existing water main serving the factory. However further works will have to be 
progressed to cap off the existing pipe once the buildings have been demolished 
The final water meter readings for No 1 property have been forwarded onto SKDC/AY. 
 
 
On-site Sewers 
Live Sewers from houses on Barnack Road and housing development to the western boundary to the 
pumping house - marked on site and recorded. 
Live pumping main from pump house along Network Rail boundary - marked on site and recorded.   
Sewer CCTV completed. Located blockages in the existing sewer which Anglian Water have removed. Now 
awaiting a re-visit from our Drainage CCTV company to finish off the survey.  
 
Telecoms BT 
Update required. 
 
 
2.4 Planning 
 
No planning issue, all pre-commencement planning has been applied for and the approved.  
 
 
2.5 Building Regulations 
 
Section 80 issued 
 
 
2.6 Information Required from Client 
 
No information required at present  
 
 
3.0 Health, Safety & Environmental 
  
3.1 General Health & Safety Matters 
 

 Visits by GFT safety advisor: 1 
 

  HSE Site sub-contractor visits: 1 pre-contract and 1 contract review issued. 
 

 Client SKDC on going site attendance as and when required encouraged.   
 

 Principle Designer on going site attendance as and when required encouraged 
 

 Accidents in the period: 0 

49



 

 pg. 6 

 
 Total Accidents: 0 

 
 Near miss incidents in the period: 0 

 
 
 

3.2 Environmental 
 
GFT will continue to monitor all areas and plant and follow GFT procedures  
Delta Simons’ are employed to develop the MMP and REM Strat.  
 

GFT-01855_BarnackR
d%252CStamford-Demolition.pdf 
 
4.0 Utilities 
 
See table below for status of each utility service. 
 
 

Utility Status 
Electric Wester Power (National Grid) consulted, and meetings held on site.  
Gas Cadent consulted 
Water & 
Sewers Anglian Water consulted, and meetings held on site. 
Telecom Notified and awaiting update. 

 
 
5.0 Commercial 
 
 
5.1 Interim Valuations 
 
Valuation Number 1 submitted on 30/04/2022 for the value of £65,325.80 nett. Awaiting 
receipt of PM’s Certificate. 
 
5.2 Compensation Events 
  
Compensation Events issued to date: 
 

- CE1 – Initial Remediation Scope – Issued on 18/03/2022 
- CE2 – Bat and Bird Survey – Issued on 25/03/2022 
- CE3 – Repair Works Following Break-in – Issued on 30/03/2022 
- CE4 – Remaining Remediation Scope – Issued on 11/04/2022 
- CE5 – Lead Paint Survey – Issued on 07/04/2022 – NO PMI REQUIRED 
- CE6 – Service Disconnections – Issued on 16/05/2022 
- CE7 – Type 1 Material – Issued on 27/04/2022 
- CE8 – Planning Conditions 
- CE9 – Additional Tree Removal – Issued on 11/05/2022 

50



 

 pg. 7 

- CE10 – additional asbestos removal 
- CE11 – bat survey 
- CE12 – removing unknow concrete obstructions 
- CE13 – WPD substation building structurally unsafe 
- CE14 – additional tree removal to eastern boundary 

 
 
 
 
 
5.3 Subcontract Procurement 
 
The following subcontract orders have been placed to date: 
 

- Mick George          Demolition Contractor 
- Grantham Electrical     Low Voltage Electrical Disconnections             
- EPES       11kva Electrical Disconnection                           
- Musson Heating           Gas Disconnections 
- JPT       Temporary works, Civil & Structural 

Engineers                                                                                                     
- Delta Simons’     Remediation Consultants and Testing 

 
 
 
5.4 Early Warning Notice Register 
 
EWN 1 - Bat and Bird Survey – Issued on 25/03/2022 
EWN 2 - Pre-commencement planning condition discharge – Issued on 24/04/2022 
EWN 3 – 11kva Overhead Cables – Issued on 09/05/2022 
EWN 4 – nesting birds 
EWN 5 – WPD substation 
EWN 6 – building 7 ACM’s 
EWN 7 – office/1904 structure 
 
 
5.5 PMI`s. 
 
PMI 001- Initial Remediation Scope – Issued on 29/03/2022 - £27,571.70 
PMI 002 – Bat and Bird Survey – Issued on 29/03/2022 - £1,585.64 
PMI 003 – Repair Works Following Break-in – Issued on 30/03/2022 - £7,351.47 
PMI 004 – Remaining Remediation Scope – Issued on 11/04/2022 - £50,473.50 
 
To be updated in client meeting. 
 

    
    

 6.0 Other Matters 
 
 
6.1 Relationships with neighbours and other parties 
 

51



 

 pg. 8 

Letter drop to neighbours’ issue and no comments to date.  
No comments received during construction, all relationships with all parties good. 
 
  
6.2 Relationship with Client 
 
The site team can confirm that Regular communications are taking place.    
 
Regular informal meetings are also to taking place. 
 
 
 
 
 
.6.4 Progress Photographs 
 
See attached 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

52



 

 pg. 9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

53



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 
 

 
PROGRESS REPORT 3  

 

For 
 

 
 
 

12.7.2022 issue No 3  

 
Barnack Road, Stamford – Demolition of Old 

Cummins Factory Site 
 
 
Contents 
 

1.  Programme 
1.1 Particulars 
1.2 Progress in the period 
1.3 Programme Status 
1.4 Programme 
 

2. Design 
2.1 Architectural 
2.2 Structural 
2.3 Planning 
2.4 Building Control 
2.5 Information Required 

 
3. Health, Safety & Environmental 

3.1 General Health & Safety Matters 
3.2 Environmental 
 

4. Utilities 

55



 

 pg. 2 

 
5. Commercial Report 

5.1 Valuations 
5.2 Variations and Instructions 
5.3 Subcontract Procurement 
5.4 Local Spend 
 

6. Other Matters 
6.1 Relationship with Client 
6.2 Relationship with Neighbours / other parties 
6.3 Considerate Constructors Scheme 
6.4 Progress Photographs 

 
 
 
1.0 Programme 
 
1.1 Particulars  
 
 Delivery Agreement Start Date:   18.04.2022  
 Access Date:      18.04.2022 
 Contract Duration:     36 weeks  
 Completion Date:     10.01.2023 
 Planned Completion Date:    10.01.2023 
 Programme:      D1797 Construction programme as 

attached 
 Report Compiled:      6.6.2022 
 
1.2 Progress in the period 
 
Delivery Stage (Phase 1A) 
Pre-construction lead in time - 100% 
Submit Section 80 notice - 100% 
Prepare & issue construction phase plan - 100% 
Start on Site - 100% 
Principal designer - 100% 
Construction activity demolition works (Phase 1A) - 25% 
Works Completion (phase 1A) - 0% 
 
Delivery Stage (Phase 1B) 
Network Rail submission of BAPA 100% 
Execution of BAPA agreement 100% 
Liaison with Network Rail, agree method & scope of works with NR 55% 
Liaison with Western Power 55% 
Existing Utilities terminated at or outside site boundaries (by client & Contractor) 25% 
Construction activity (Phase 1B) - 5% 
Works complete 0% 
 

56



 

 pg. 3 

 
Delivery Stage (Phase 2) works not part of COG Report 
Further Ground Investigations - 5% 
Contamination strategy & method statement Updates (phase 2) - 0% 
Material Management Plan - 0% 
Receive Contamination strategy (phase 2) - 0% 
Submit any updates to Contamination Strategy to planning (Risk item) - 0% 
Contamination / Remediation works 0% 
Topographical Completion Survey - 0%  
Planned Completion - 0% 
Terminal Float - 0% 
Completion - 0% 
 
1.2.1 Planned works not achieved in construction period  
 
1.3 Programme Status 
  

 We are working to construction issued programme  
 
 
 
1.3.1     Weather Record 
 

No Lost days due to weather  
 
 

1.4 Programme 
 
See attached programme with progress as of 3.6.22 
 

57



 

 pg. 4 

2.0 Design 
 

 
2.1 Architectural 
 
No Architectural design drawings as this project is civils/structural based.  
 
 

 
2.1 Principal Designer – CDM Regulations 2015 
 
Nigel Brook GradIOSH, MCIOB 

NB-HSA Ltd 
Health and Safety 
Risk Management 
07882 760216 
nigel@nbhsa.co.uk 
 
F10 issue and construction phase H,S&E plan issued and reviewed.  
 

 
2.2 Structural & Civil (Drainage Works) 
 
Stuart Lever 
Director 

 
8 Pride Point Drive, Pride Park, Derby, DE24 8BX 
Tel:         01332 364675 
Fax:        01332 344780 
Mob:     07795 560187 
Email:    stuart.lever@jacksonpl.co.uk 
 
Drawing and specification update to construction status.  
 
Temporary works design for office block v 1904 to be progressed 
 
 
 
2.3 Mechanical & Electrical (on-site and off-site services) 
 
On-site - Electric 
 
All covered in the previous report     
 
On-site – Gas 
Gas meter position 1 removed. 
Gas pipe to gas point 1 – awaiting disconnection certification from cadent gas 
IP main disconnection to be disconnected by the client 
 

58



 

 pg. 5 

On-site Water 
We have connected onto the existing water main serving the factory. However further works will have to be 
progressed to cap off the existing pipe once the buildings have been demolished 
Mussons on site 8/7/21 to cap of existing water main on site that serves the existing main factory units 
 
 
On-site Sewers 
Drainage CCTV company have completed the survey, now awaiting the report  
 
Telecoms BT 
Update required. 
 
 
2.4 Planning 
 
No planning issue, all pre-commencement planning has been applied for and the approved.  
 
 
2.5 Building Regulations 
 
Section 80 issued 
 
 
2.6 Information Required from Client 
 
No information required at present  
 

 
3.0 Health, Safety & Environmental 
  
3.1 General Health & Safety Matters 
 

 Visits by GFT safety advisor:  
 

  HSE Site sub-contractor visits: 2no and issued 
 

 Client SKDC on going site attendance as and when required encouraged.   
 

 Principle Designer on going site attendance as and when required encouraged 
 

 Accidents in the period: 0 
 

 Total Accidents: 0 
 

 Near miss incidents in the period: 0 
 
 
 

3.2 Environmental 
 
GFT will continue to monitor all areas and plant and follow GFT procedures  
Delta Simons’ are employed to develop the MMP and REM Strat.  
 

GFT-01855_BarnackR
d%252CStamford-Demolition.pdf

 

59



 

 pg. 6 

 
4.0 Utilities 
 
See table below for status of each utility service. 
 

 
Utility Status 
Electric Wester Power (National Grid) consulted, and meetings held on site.  
Gas Cadent consulted 
Water & 
Sewers Anglian Water consulted, and meetings held on site. 
Telecom Notified and awaiting update. 

 
 
5.0 Commercial 
 
 
5.1 Interim Valuations 
 
Valuation Number 2 submitted on 21/06/2022 for the value of £383524.80 nett. PM’s 
certificate received 28/06/2022. 
 
5.2 Compensation Events 

  
Compensation Events issued to date: 
 

- CE1 – Initial Remediation Scope – Issued on 18/03/2022 
- CE2 – Bat and Bird Survey – Issued on 25/03/2022 
- CE3 – Repair Works Following Break-in – Issued on 30/03/2022 
- CE4 – Remaining Remediation Scope – Issued on 11/04/2022 
- CE5 – Lead Paint Survey – Issued on 07/04/2022 – NO PMI REQUIRED 
- CE6 – Service Disconnections – Issued on 16/05/2022 
- CE7 – Type 1 Material – Issued on 27/04/2022 
- CE8 – Planning Conditions 
- CE9 – Additional Tree Removal – Issued on 11/05/2022 
- CE10 – Additional Asbestos Removal – Issued on 25/05/2022 
- CE11 – Nocturnal Bat Survey – Issued on 25/05/2022 
- CE12 – Removing Unknown Concrete Obstructions – Issued on 26/05/2022 
- CE13 – WPD Sub-Station Building Structurally Unsafe – Issued on 06/07/2022 
- CE14 – Additional Tree Removal to Eastern Boundary 
- CE15 - Investigation for Water Supply To B3 & B5 – Issued on 22/06/2022 
- CE-16 - Building 1904 & Office block structure and Parapets. – Issued on 

01/07/2022 
- CE17 - Weathering to Substation – Issued on 01/07/2022 
- CE18 - Additional Asbestos Removal in Building 10 - AIB in Columns – To Be 

Issued (awaiting report from Mick George.) 
 
 
 

60



 

 pg. 7 

 
 
5.3 Subcontract Procurement 
 
The following subcontract orders have been placed to date: 
 

- Mick George          Demolition Contractor 
- Grantham Electrical     Low Voltage Electrical Disconnections             
- EPES       11kva Electrical Disconnection                           
- Musson Heating           Gas Disconnections 
- JPT       Temporary works, Civil & Structural 

Engineers                                                                                                     
- Delta Simons’     Remediation Consultants and Testing 

 
 
 
5.4 Early Warning Notice Register 
 
EWN 1 - Bat and Bird Survey – Issued on 25/03/2022 
EWN 2 - Pre-commencement planning condition discharge – Issued on 24/04/2022 
EWN 3 – 11kva Overhead Cables – Issued on 09/05/2022 
EWN 4 – nesting birds 
EWN 5 – WPD substation 
EWN 6 – building 7 ACM’s 
EWN 7 – office/1904 structure 
EWN 8 – Non licenced asbestos cladding to office block roof 
EWN 9 – Building 10 AIB Columns 
EWN 10 – Interceptors North side of building 4 
 
 
5.5 PMI`s. 
 
PMI 001- Initial Remediation Scope – Issued on 29/03/2022 - £27,571.70 
PMI 002 – Bat and Bird Survey – Issued on 29/03/2022 - £1,585.64 
PMI 003 – Repair Works Following Break-in – Issued on 30/03/2022 - £7,351.47 
PMI 004 – Remaining Remediation Scope – Issued on 11/04/2022 - £50,473.50 
PMI 005 – Nocturnal Bat Survey – Issued on 06/06/2022 - £3,511.20 
 
 

    
    

 6.0 Other Matters 
 
 
6.1 Relationships with neighbours and other parties 
 
Letter drop to neighbours’ issue and no comments to date.  
No comments received during construction, all relationships with all parties good. 
 
  

61



 

 pg. 8 

6.2 Relationship with Client 
 
The site team can confirm that Regular communications are taking place.    
 
Regular informal meetings are also to taking place. 
 
 
 
 
 

.6.4 Progress Photographs 
 
See attached 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

62



 

 pg. 9 

 
 
 
 
 
 

63



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

PROGRESS REPORT Nr 4 
  09/08/2022 

     
 
 

Barnack Road, Stamford – Demolition of Old 
Cummins Factory Site. 

 
Contents 
 

1.  Programme 
1.1 Particulars 
1.2 Progress in the period 
1.3 Programme Status 
1.4 Programme 

 
2. Design 

2.1 Architectural 
2.2 Structural 
2.3 Planning 
2.4 Building Control 
2.5 Information Required 

 
3. Health, Safety & Environmental 

3.1 General Health & Safety Matters 
3.2 Environmental 
 

4. Utilities 
 

5. Commercial Report 
5.1 Valuations 
5.2 Variations and Instructions 
5.3 Subcontract Procurement 
5.4 Local Spend 
 

6. Other Matters 
6.1 Relationship with Client 
6.2 Relationship with Neighbours / other parties 
6.3 Considerate Constructors Scheme 

65

https://pre.lincolnshire.gov.uk/


 

 pg. 2 

6.4 Progress Photographs 
 

 
 
1.0 Programme 
 
1.1 Particulars  
 

• Delivery Agreement Start Date:   18.04.2022  

• Access Date:      18.04.2022 

• Contract Duration:     36 weeks  

• Completion Date:     10.01.2023 

• Planned Completion Date:    10.01.2023 

• Programme:      D1797 Construction Programme 

• Report Compiled:      08.08.2022 

 
1.2 Progress in the period 
 
Delivery Stage (Phase 1A) 
Pre-construction lead in time - 100% 
Submit Section 80 notice - 100% 
Prepare & issue construction phase plan - 100% 
Start on Site - 100% 
Principal designer - 100% 
Construction activity demolition works (Phase 1A) - 65% (Estimate) 
Works Completion (phase 1A) - 0% 
 

Delivery Stage (Phase 1B) 
Network Rail submission of BAPA 100% 
Execution of BAPA agreement 100% 
Liaison with Network Rail, agree method & scope of works with NR 100% 
Liaison with Western Power 100% 
Existing Utilities terminated at or outside site boundaries (by client & Contractor) 35% 
Construction activity (Phase 1B) - 50% 
Works complete 0% 
 

 
Delivery Stage (Phase 2) works not part of COG Report 
Further Ground Investigations - 35% 
Contamination strategy & method statement Updates (phase 2) - 0% 
Material Management Plan - 0% 
Receive Contamination strategy (phase 2) - 0% 
Submit any updates to Contamination Strategy to planning (Risk item) - 0% 
Contamination / Remediation works 0% 
Topographical Completion Survey - 0%  
Planned Completion - 0% 
Terminal Float - 0% 
Completion - 0% 

 
 

66



 

 pg. 3 

1.2.1 Planned works not achieved in construction period  
 Nothing to comment on. 
 
1.3 Programme Status 
  We are working to construction issued programme. 
 
1.3.1 Weather Record 

Although it’s been extraordinarily hot no Lost days due to weather. 
 

1.4 Programme 

 
On a Separate A3 Document. 

67



 

 pg. 4 

2.0 Design 
 

2.1 Architectural 
No Architectural design drawings as this project is civils/structural based.  

 
2.1 Principal Designer – CDM Regulations 2015 
 

Nigel Brook GradIOSH, MCIOB 

NB-HSA Ltd 
Health and Safety 
Risk Management 

07882 760216 
nigel@nbhsa.co.uk 
 
F10 issue and construction phase H,S&E plan issued and reviewed.  

 
2.2 Structural & Civil (Drainage Works) 
 
Stuart Lever 

Director 

 
8 Pride Point Drive, Pride Park, Derby, DE24 8BX 
Tel:         01332 364675 
Fax:        01332 344780 
Mob:     07795 560187 
Email:    stuart.lever@jacksonpl.co.uk 

 
Drawings and specifications now construction status.  
 
Temporary works design for office block v 1904 new being reviewed by all parties 
 
 

2.3 Mechanical & Electrical (on-site and off-site services) 
 
On-site - Electric 
 
All covered in the previous report     
 
On-site – Gas 
Gas meter position 1 removed. 
Gas pipe to gas point 1 – disconnected cadent gas in the grass verge South side of  Barnack Road 
IP main disconnection to be disconnected by the client. 3>4 Trees identified and tagged for removal to 
facilitate access for SAS/Cadent. 
 
On-site Water 
We have connected onto the existing water main serving the factory. We believe all water mains on site are 
now dead, with the exception of the internal fire hydrant in Bldg 1904, and our site supply from in front of the 
office block East. 
We have applied to Anglian Water to remove this supply, and install a new “building/developers” supply to 
the East side of the old carpark entrance gate. 
 

68

tel:07882%20760216
mailto:nigel@nbhsa.co.uk
mailto:stuart.lever@jacksonpl.co.uk


 

 pg. 5 

On-site Sewers 
Drainage CCTV company have completed the survey, queries regarding the report are being addressed.  
 
Telecoms BT 
Update required regarding the removal of the cables into the building West of 1904? 

 

2.4 Planning 
 
No planning issue, all pre-commencement planning has been applied for and the approved.  
 

2.5 Building Regulations 
 

Section 80 issued 
 

2.6 Information Required from Client 
 
Covered in the daily email correspondence. 
BT cable? 

 
3.0 Health, Safety & Environmental 
  
3.1 General Health & Safety Matters 
 

• Visits by GFT safety advisor: 04/08/22 
 

•  Site sub-contractor QSHE visits: 2no and issued 
 

• Client SKDC on going site attendance as and when required encouraged.   
 

• Principle Designer on going site attendance as and when required encouraged 
 

• Accidents in the period: 0 
 

• Total Accidents: 0 
 

• Near miss incidents in the period: 0 
 
 
 

3.2 Environmental 
 
GFT will continue to monitor all areas and plant and follow GFT procedures  
Delta Simons’ are employed to develop the MMP and REM Strat.  
 

 
4.0 Utilities 
 
See table below for status of each utility service. 
 

 
Utility Status 

Electric Wester Power (National Grid) consulted, & regular attendance on site.  

Gas Cadent consulted 

Water & Sewers Anglian Water consulted, and meetings held on site. 

69



 

 pg. 6 

Telecom Notified and awaiting update. 

 
 
5.0 Commercial 
 
5.1 Interim Valuations 
 
Valuation Number 3 submitted on 22/07/2022 for the value of £380,556.56 nett. PM’s 
certificate received 01/08/2022. 

 
5.2 Compensation Events 

  
Compensation Events issued to date: 
 

- CE1 – Initial Remediation Scope – Issued on 18/03/2022 
- CE2 – Bat and Bird Survey – Issued on 25/03/2022 
- CE3 – Repair Works Following Break-in – Issued on 30/03/2022 
- CE4 – Remaining Remediation Scope – Issued on 11/04/2022 
- CE5 – Lead Paint Survey – Issued on 07/04/2022 – NO PMI REQUIRED 
- CE6 – Service Disconnections – Issued on 16/05/2022 
- CE7 – Type 1 Material – Issued on 27/04/2022 
- CE8 – Planning Conditions 
- CE9 – Additional Tree Removal – Issued on 11/05/2022 
- CE10 – Additional Asbestos Removal – Issued on 25/05/2022 
- CE11 – Nocturnal Bat Survey – Issued on 25/05/2022 
- CE12 – Removing Unknown Concrete Obstructions – Issued on 26/05/2022 
- CE13 – WPD Sub-Station Building Structurally Unsafe – Issued on 06/07/2022 
- CE14 – Additional Tree Removal to Eastern Boundary 
- CE15 - Investigation for Water Supply To B3 & B5 – Issued on 22/06/2022 
- CE-16 - Building 1904 & Office block structure and Parapets. – Issued on 

01/07/2022 
- CE17 - Weathering to Substation – Issued on 01/07/2022 
- CE18 - Additional Asbestos Removal in Building 10 - AIB in Columns – To Be 

Issued (awaiting report from Mick George.) 
- CE19 – Non-Licensed Asbestos – Building 16 – Issued on 28/07/2022 
- CE20 – Additional Tree Removal – Issued on 28/07/2022 
- CE21 – East Section of Building 17 Resequencing – Issued on 02/08/2022 
- CE22 – High Level Asbestos on Building 7 – Issued 0n 03/08/2022 
- CE23 – Trial Holes for Anglian Water Pumping Main – TBC 
- CE24 – Works Associated with Tank Found Adjacent to Building 6 - TBC 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

70



 

 pg. 7 

5.3 Subcontract Procurement 
 
The following subcontract orders have been placed to date: 
 

- Mick George        Demolition Contractor 
- Grantham Electrical  Low Voltage Electrical Disconnections 
- EPES     11kva Electrical Disconnection  
- Musson Heating        Gas Disconnections 
- JPT     Temporary works, Civil & Structural 

Engineers                                                                               
- Delta Simons’  Remediation Consultants and Testing 
- NRA Roofing   Substation Roof Weather Proofing 

 
 
 
5.4 Early Warning Notice Register 
 

EWN 1 - Bat and Bird Survey – Issued on 25.03.2022 
EWN 2 - Pre-commencement planning condition discharge – Issued on 24.04.2022 
EWN 3 – 11kva Overhead Cables – Issued on 09.05.2022 
EWN 4 – Nesting Birds – Issued on 26.05.2022 
EWN 5 – WPD Substation – Issued on 26.05.2022 
EWN 6 – Building 7 ACM’s – Issued 26.05.2022 
EWN 7 – Office/1904 Structure – Issued on 30.05.2022 
EWN 8 – Non licenced asbestos cladding to office block roof – Issued on 13.06.2022 
EWN 9 – Building 10 AIB Columns – Issued on 23.06.2022 
EWN 10 – Interceptors North side of building 4 – Issued on 24.06.2022 
EWN 11 – Buried ACM’s found under footprint of bldg. 16 – Issued on 12.07.2022 
EWN 12 – Building 16 Tank area found beneath the slab – Issued on 14.07.2022 
EWN 13 – Buried ACM’s found under footprint of bldgs. 11&12 – Issued on 22.07.2022 
EWN 14 – Building 6 Tank area found beneath the slab – Issued on 28.07.2022 
 
 

5.5 PMI`s. 
 
PMI 001- Initial Remediation Scope – Issued on 29/03/2022 - £27,571.70 
PMI 002 – Bat and Bird Survey – Issued on 29/03/2022 - £1,585.64 
PMI 003 – Repair Works Following Break-in – Issued on 30/03/2022 - £7,351.47 
PMI 004 – Remaining Remediation Scope – Issued on 26/04/2022 - £50,473.50 
PMI 006 – Utility Disconnections – Issued on 11/07/2022 - £12,560.90 
PMI 010 – Additional Asbestos to Building 5 – Issued on 11/07/2022 - £62,700.00 
PMI 011 – Nocturnal Bat Survey – Issued on 06/06/2022 - £3,511.20 
PMI 013 – Substation Works – Issued on 11/07/2022 - £4,765.20 
PMI 015 – Water Supply Investigation – Issued on 11/07/2022 - £2,126.58 
 
Total PMI Value to Date: £172,645.99 as of 05/08/2022 

 
 
 
 
 

71



 

 pg. 8 

6.0 Other Matters 
 
6.1 Relationships with neighbours and other parties 
 
3rd Letter drop to neighbours’ issue and no comments to date.  
No comments received during construction, all relationships with all parties good. 
Planned meeting 17:15 Monday 8th August with the tenant neighbour of Nr 41 Barnack 
Road, to agree proposed dates & processes for the boundary wall demolition work and 
fencing reinstatement works. 

  
6.2 Relationship with Client 
The site team can confirm that Regular communications are taking place.    
Regular informal meetings are also to taking place. 
 

6.3 Network Rail 
 
Paul Dawson of Network Rail has been monitoring works, and has applied to 
his central office for the wayleaves drawings that should show where the 
surface water and foul pumping main cross underneath the tracks. 
 

.6.4 Progress Photographs 
 

   
 

     
 

   

72



 
 

 
 
 

 
PROGRESS REPORT 5  

 

For 
 

 
 
 

2.9.2022 issue No 5  

 
Barnack Road, Stamford – Demolition of Old 

Cummins Factory Site 
 
 
Contents 
 

1.  Programme 
1.1 Particulars 
1.2 Progress in the period 
1.3 Programme Status 
1.4 Programme 
 

2. Design 
2.1 Architectural 
2.2 Structural 
2.3 Planning 
2.4 Building Control 
2.5 Information Required 

 
3. Health, Safety & Environmental 

3.1 General Health & Safety Matters 
3.2 Environmental 
 

4. Utilities 

73



 

 pg. 2 

 
5. Commercial Report 

5.1 Valuations 
5.2 Variations and Instructions 
5.3 Subcontract Procurement 
5.4 Local Spend 
 

6. Other Matters 
6.1 Relationship with Client 
6.2 Relationship with Neighbours / other parties 
6.3 Considerate Constructors Scheme 
6.4 Progress Photographs 

 
 
 
1.0 Programme 
 
1.1 Particulars  
 
 Delivery Agreement Start Date:   18.04.2022  
 Access Date:      18.04.2022 
 Contract Duration:     36 weeks  
 Completion Date:     10.01.2023 
 Planned Completion Date:    10.01.2023 
 Programme:      D1797 Construction programme as 

attached 
 Report Compiled:      2.9.2022 
 
1.2 Progress in the period 
 
Delivery Stage (Phase 1A) 
Pre-construction lead in time - 100% 
Submit Section 80 notice - 100% 
Prepare & issue construction phase plan - 100% 
Start on Site - 100% 
Principal designer - 100% 
Construction activity demolition works (Phase 1A) - 70% [approx.] 
Works Completion (phase 1A) - 0% 
 
Delivery Stage (Phase 1B) 
Network Rail submission of BAPA 100% 
Execution of BAPA agreement 100% 
Liaison with Network Rail, agree method & scope of works with NR 55% 
Liaison with Western Power 55% 
Existing Utilities terminated at or outside site boundaries (by client & Contractor) 35% 
Construction activity (Phase 1B) - 70% [approx.] 
Works complete 0% 
 

74



 

 pg. 3 

 
Delivery Stage (Phase 2) works not part of COG Report 
Further Ground Investigations - 40% Delta have been on site carrying out investigation 
works to the old tanks and drilling some additional bore holes to the northern part of the 
site [building 7,8,9 area] and to building 12 and the canteen area. 
Contamination strategy & method statement Updates (phase 2) - 0% 
Draft Earthworks plans have been issued with 3 options. Awaiting prices back from Mick 
George. 
Material Management Plan - 0% 
Receive Contamination strategy (phase 2) - 0% 
Submit any updates to Contamination Strategy to planning (Risk item) - 0% 
Contamination / Remediation works 0% 
Topographical Completion Survey - 0%  
Planned Completion - 0% 
Terminal Float - 0% 
Completion - 0% 
 
No 41 Barnack Road works – Demolition of External Out Buildings 
Demolition of the buildings – 100% 
Awaiting installation of timber fence – Due 8/9/22 
 
1.2.1 Planned works not achieved in construction period  
 
1.3 Programme Status 
  

 We are working to construction issued programme  
 
 
 
1.3.1     Weather Record 
 

No Lost days due to weather  
 
 

1.4 Programme 
 
See attached programme with progress as of 2.9.22 
 

75



 

 pg. 4 

2.0 Design 
 
 
2.1 Architectural 
 
No Architectural design drawings as this project is civils/structural based.  
 
 
 
2.1 Principal Designer – CDM Regulations 2015 
 
Nigel Brook GradIOSH, MCIOB 

NB-HSA Ltd 
Health and Safety 
Risk Management 
07882 760216 
nigel@nbhsa.co.uk 
 
F10 issue and construction phase H,S&E plan issued and reviewed.  
 
 
2.2 Structural & Civil (Drainage Works) 
 
Stuart Lever 
Director 

 
8 Pride Point Drive, Pride Park, Derby, DE24 8BX 
Tel:         01332 364675 
Fax:        01332 344780 
Mob:     07795 560187 
Email:    stuart.lever@jacksonpl.co.uk 
 
Drawing and specification update to construction status.  
 
Temporary works design for office block v 1904 to be progressed 
 
 
 
2.3 Mechanical & Electrical (on-site and off-site services) 
 
On-site - Electric 
 
All covered in the previous report     
 
On-site – Gas 
Gas meter position 1 removed. 
Gas pipe to gas point 1 – awaiting disconnection certification from cadent gas 
IP main disconnection to be disconnected by the client 
 

76



 

 pg. 5 

On-site Water 
We have connected onto the existing water main serving the factory. However further works will have to be 
progressed to cap off the existing pipe once the buildings have been demolished 
New builders temporary water supply in progress via Anglian Water. 
 
On-site Sewers 
Drainage CCTV company have completed the survey. Comments on the report are being addressed.  
 
Telecoms BT 
Update required. 
 
 
2.4 Planning 
 
No planning issue, all pre-commencement planning has been applied for and the approved.  
 
 
2.5 Building Regulations 
 
Section 80 issued 
 
 
2.6 Information Required from Client 
 
Just an update on BT and also clarification on the gas housing removal works, are SMS removing 
the roof for access to the gas meter? 
 
 
3.0 Health, Safety & Environmental 
  
3.1 General Health & Safety Matters 
 

 Visits by GFT safety advisor: ????? 
 

  HSE Site sub-contractor visits: ???no and issued 
 

 Client SKDC on going site attendance as and when required encouraged.   
 

 Principle Designer on going site attendance as and when required encouraged 
 

 Accidents in the period: 0 
 

 Total Accidents: 0 
 

 Near miss incidents in the period: 0 
 
 
 

3.2 Environmental 
 
GFT will continue to monitor all areas and plant and follow GFT procedures  
Delta Simons’ are employed to develop the MMP and REM Strat.  
 
 

 
4.0 Utilities 

77



 

 pg. 6 

 
See table below for status of each utility service. 
 
 

Utility Status 
Electric Wester Power (National Grid) consulted, and meetings held on site.  
Gas Cadent consulted 
Water & 
Sewers Anglian Water consulted, and meetings held on site. 
Telecom Notified and awaiting update. 

 
 
5.0 Commercial 
 
 
5.1 Interim Valuations 
 
Valuation Number 2 submitted on 21/06/2022 for the value of £383524.80 nett. PM’s 
certificate received 28/06/2022. 
 
5.2 Compensation Events 
 
Compensation Events issued to date: 
 

- CE1 – Initial Remediation Scope – Issued on 18/03/2022 
- CE2 – Bat and Bird Survey – Issued on 25/03/2022 
- CE3 – Repair Works Following Break-in – Issued on 30/03/2022 
- CE4 – Remaining Remediation Scope – Issued on 11/04/2022 
- CE5 – Lead Paint Survey – Issued on 07/04/2022 – NO PMI REQUIRED 
- CE6 – Service Disconnections – Issued on 16/05/2022 
- CE7 – Type 1 Material – Issued on 27/04/2022 
- CE8 – Planning Conditions 
- CE9 – Additional Tree Removal – Issued on 11/05/2022 
- CE10 – Additional Asbestos Removal – Issued on 25/05/2022 
- CE11 – Nocturnal Bat Survey – Issued on 25/05/2022 
- CE12 – Removing Unknown Concrete Obstructions – Issued on 26/05/2022 
- CE13 – WPD Sub-Station Building Structurally Unsafe – Issued on 06/07/2022 
- CE14 – Additional Tree Removal to Eastern Boundary 
- CE15 - Investigation for Water Supply To B3 & B5 – Issued on 22/06/2022 
- CE-16 - Building 1904 & Office block structure and Parapets. – Issued on 

01/07/2022 
- CE17 - Weathering to Substation – Issued on 01/07/2022 
- CE18 - Additional Asbestos Removal in Building 10 - AIB in Columns – Issued 

07/07/22 
- CE19 – Non-Licensed Asbestos – Building 16 – Issued on 28/07/2022 
- CE20 – Additional Tree Removal – Issued on 28/07/2022 
- CE21 – East Section of Building 17 Resequencing – Issued on 02/08/2022 
- CE22 – High Level Asbestos on Building 7 – Issued 0n 03/08/2022 
- CE23 – Trial Holes for Anglian Water Pumping Main / Interceptor – TBC 

78



 

 pg. 7 

- CE24 – Works Associated with Tank Found Adjacent to Building 6 – CE to 
be formally issued, budget £312.47 

- CE25 – Missing ground surveys required  -  CE to be formally issued, budget 
£1,712.49 

- CE26 – Additional asbestos underneath footprint of buildings 11 and 12  -  CE to be 
issued once costs known 

- CE27 – Additional asbestos found within building 5 areas  -  CE to be issued once 
costs known 

- CE28 – Electrical contractor attendance to investigate potentially live feeds to gas 
meter housing, main entrance area and adjacent lamp posts  -  CE to be formally 
issued, budget £500.00 

- CE T.B.A.  -  Further investigations / works for the main water into the site adjacent 
to the office block 

- CE T.B.A.  -  Surveys / Investigations relating to building 1904 structure and design 
for temporary propping 

- CE T.B.A.  -  Additional asbestos material serving as a DPC tray 
- CE T.B.A.  -  Additional consultant costs Jackson Purdue Lever / Delta Simons 
- CE T.B.A.  -  “Other Items” to be advised by either party as becomes applicable 
 

 
 
5.3 Subcontract Procurement 
 
The following subcontract orders have been placed to date: 
 

- Mick George        Demolition Contractor 
- Grantham Electrical  Low Voltage Electrical Disconnections 
- EPES     11kva Electrical Disconnection  
- Musson Heating        Gas Disconnections 
- JPL     Temporary works, Civil & Structural 

Engineers                                                                               
- Delta Simons’  Remediation Consultants and Testing 
- NRA Roofing   Substation Roof Weather Proofing 
- Derwent Fencing  Residential boundary fencing 
- Beechwood   Tree / Shrubbery removals 
- MLB Engineering  Secondary Steelwork / Plate Connections 
- Amptron   Electrical investigations 

 
 
5.4 Early Warning Notice Register 
 
EWN 1 - Bat and Bird Survey – Issued on 25.03.2022 
EWN 2 - Pre-commencement planning condition discharge – Issued on 24.04.2022 
EWN 3 – 11kva Overhead Cables – Issued on 09.05.2022 
EWN 4 – Nesting Birds – Issued on 26.05.2022 
EWN 5 – WPD Substation – Issued on 26.05.2022 
EWN 6 – Building 7 ACM’s – Issued 26.05.2022 
EWN 7 – Office/1904 Structure – Issued on 30.05.2022 
EWN 8 – Non licenced asbestos cladding to office block roof – Issued on 13.06.2022 
EWN 9 – Building 10 AIB Columns – Issued on 23.06.2022 
EWN 10 – Interceptors North side of building 4 – Issued on 24.06.2022 
EWN 11 – Buried ACM’s found under footprint of bldg. 16 – Issued on 12.07.2022 
EWN 12 – Building 16 Tank area found beneath the slab – Issued on 14.07.2022 

79



 

 pg. 8 

EWN 13 – Buried ACM’s found under footprint of bldgs. 11&12 – Issued on 
22.07.2022 
EWN 14 – Building 6 Tank area found beneath the slab – Issued on 28.07.2022 
EWN 15 – Building 5 non licensed asbestos find in the ground – issued 12.8.22 
EWN 16 – 1904/Office block – temporary works update – issued 25.8.22 
EWN 17 – External out building – non licensed asbestos find to dpc level – issued 25.8.22 
 
 
5.5 PMI`s. 
 
PMI 001- Initial Remediation Scope – Issued on 29/03/2022 - £27,571.70 
PMI 002 – Bat and Bird Survey – Issued on 29/03/2022 - £1,585.64 
PMI 003 – Repair Works Following Break-in – Issued on 30/03/2022 - £7,351.47 
PMI 004 – Remaining Remediation Scope – Issued on 26/04/2022 - £50,473.50 
PMI 006 – Utility Disconnections – Issued on 11/07/2022 - £12,560.90 
PMI 010 – Additional Asbestos to Building 5 – Issued on 11/07/2022 - £62,700.00 
PMI 011 – Nocturnal Bat Survey – Issued on 06/06/2022 - £3,511.20 
PMI 013 – Substation Works – Issued on 11/07/2022 - £4,765.20 
PMI 015 – Water Supply Investigation – Issued on 11/07/2022 - £2,126.58 
PMI 018 – Additional Asbestos removal in B10 – AIB Columns - £13,459.60 
PMI 021 – East section of building 17 demolition resequencing - £6,524.44 
 
 
Total PMI Value to Date: £192,630.23 as of 01/09/2022 
  

    
    

 6.0 Other Matters 
 
 
6.1 Relationships with neighbours and other parties 
 
Letter drop to neighbours’ issue and no comments to date.  
No comments received during construction, generally aall relationships with all parties are 
good. However there have been 2 complaints regarding dust on cars and windows from No 
4 and 8 Barnack Road.    
 
  
6.2 Relationship with Client 
 
The site team can confirm that Regular communications are taking place.    
 
Regular informal meetings are also to taking place. 
 
 
 
 
 
.6.4 Progress Photographs 
 
 

80



 

 pg. 9 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

81



 

 pg. 10 

 
 

 

 

82



 

 pg. 11 

 

 

 

 

83



 

 pg. 12 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

84



 

 pg. 13 

 
 
 
 
 

85



This page is intentionally left blank



D1797 Stamford Contract Programme 3.6.22 updated with Delta Simons dates 28.07.22 progress 2.9.22
 

South Kesteven District Council06/09/2022 Paul Goodwin

Project Ref. C:\Users\p.goodwin\OneDrive - GF Tomlinson Group Ltd\Documents\STAMFORD\D1797 STAMFORD CONTRACT PROGRAMME 3.6.22 updated with Delta Simons dates 280722 with progress 2.9.22.pp Planned by Powerproject

Line Name Duration Start Finish Task
work rate

Percent
complete

November December January February March April May June July August September October November December January February March April MayOctober June
18 25 1 8 15 22 29 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 1 8 15 22 29 5 12
34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68 69 70 71 72 73 74 75 76 77 78 79 80 81 82 83 84 85 86 87 88 89 90 91 92 93 94 95 96 97 98 99 100 101 102 103 104 105 106 107 108 109 110 111 112 113 114 115 116 117 118 119 120 121

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

Planning 

Pre-Construction Stage (Phase 1A)

Delivery Stage (Phase 1A)

Pre-constrction lead in time

Submit Section 80 notice

Prepare & issue construction phase plan

Start on Site

Principal designer

Remediation testing

Termination of services at boundary

Construction activity demolition works (Phase 1A)

site setup

Buildings 11 and 12

Building 16

Buildings 13, 14 and 15

Canteen

Building 17

Buildings 1 and 2

Building 5

Break out slabs

Crushing of Demolition Arisings

Works Completion (phase 1A)

Delivery Stage (Phase 1B)

Network Rail  submission of BAPA

Execution of BAPA agreement 

Liaison with Network Rail to agree method and scope of works with Network Rail

Liaison with Western Power

Termination of services at boundary

Construction activity (Phase 1B)

Building 6

Building 7

Building 8 and 9

Buildings 3, 4 and 10

Break out slabs

Crushing of Demolition Arisings

Works complete

Delivery Stage (Phase 2) risk item to be confirmed

Further Ground Investigations to establish baselines for water and gas levels

Preliminary DQRA

Preliminary PVRS

Excavate/locate existing tank [ramp area]

Removal of existing tank [ramp area

Delta Simons investigation works for tank area [ramp area]

Delta Simons to take soil samples and send for testing [ramp area

Samples returned [tank in ramp area]

Issue intermediate report for tank area

Form new boreholes to building 8 and 9 boundary

Call outs throughout removal of slabs [currently based on 2 visits per month/further
investigations, including possible finds and associated works 

Issue updated DQRA and PVRS

Draft Earthworks report 

Final remediation plan issued to SKDC/EA/Planning

Review period with SKDC/Developers/Planning/EA

Material Management Plan 

Approval of remediation plan

Earthworks and RemediationPlan - Pricing/sub contractor tender process/instruction

Carry out Remediation works [to be confirmed but allowed 4 weeks]

Validation of Remediation works. Testing Boreholes on site [Delta Simons advice is 3
months]

Works complete

20w 4d

15w

27w

4w 4d

2w

2w 4d

2w

2w 3d

1w

22w

1w 4d

2w 4d

3w 4d

5w 3d

6w 3d

10w 3d

5w 4d

12w 3d

9w

8w 3d

49w 4d

10w

24w

19w

13w 4d

5w

5w

9w

10w 4d

7w 4d

4w 4d

56w 4d

3w

4w

2w 4d

2w 1d

1w

2w 1d

2w 1d

1w 4d

2w

1w

23w 4d

4w 2d

2w

6w

3w

4w

4w

12w 1d

12 Oct 21

08 Nov 21

14 Mar 22

14 Mar 22

14 Mar 22

28 Mar 22

19 Apr 22

14 Mar 22

04 Apr 22

01 Aug 22

19 Apr 22

19 Apr 22

09 May 22

16 May 22

16 May 22

25 Apr 22

25 Apr 22

23 May 22

25 Apr 22

20 Jun 22

25 Jul 22

26 Sep 22

10 Jan 22

10 Jan 22

10 Jan 22

21 Mar 22

21 Mar 22

19 Apr 22

26 Sep 22

26 Sep 22

03 Oct 22

03 Oct 22

13 Sep 22

18 Oct 22

28 Nov 22

12 Jan 23

13 Apr 22

13 Apr 22

09 May 22

07 Jun 22

15 Aug 22

18 Aug 22

15 Aug 22

15 Aug 22

30 Aug 22

12 Sep 22

07 Nov 22

27 Jun 22

12 Dec 22

25 Jul 22

12 Dec 22

12 Dec 22

21 Nov 22

06 Feb 23

30 Jan 23

27 Feb 23

13 Mar 23

12 Jun 23

11 Mar 22

25 Feb 22

26 Sep 22

14 Apr 22

25 Mar 22

14 Apr 22

19 Apr 22

25 Mar 22

22 Apr 22

11 Aug 22

22 Sep 22

29 Apr 22

26 May 22

10 Jun 22

23 Jun 22

10 Jun 22

08 Jul 22

01 Jul 22

22 Jul 22

19 Aug 22

22 Sep 22

26 Sep 22

12 Jan 23

10 Jan 22

18 Mar 22

09 Sep 22

04 Aug 22

19 Apr 22

12 Jan 23

28 Oct 22

04 Nov 22

02 Dec 22

25 Nov 22

09 Dec 22

12 Jan 23

12 Jan 23

12 Jun 23

06 May 22

06 Jun 22

24 Jun 22

30 Aug 22

24 Aug 22

30 Aug 22

30 Aug 22

09 Sep 22

23 Sep 22

11 Nov 22

09 Dec 22

12 Dec 22

14 Sep 22

23 Dec 22

03 Feb 23

09 Dec 22

06 Feb 23

24 Feb 23

24 Mar 23

09 Jun 23

12 Jun 23

100.00

100.00

81.51

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

65.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

40.00

100.00

100.00

80.00

60.00

87.34

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

60.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

55.00

100.00

48.36

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

66.67

100.00

70.00

72.73

Planning 

2 Pre-Construction Stage (Phase 1A)

3 Delivery Stage (Phase 1A)

4 Pre-constrction lead in time

5 Submit Section 80 notice

6 Prepare & issue construction phase plan

7 Start on Site

8 Principal designer

9 Remediation testing

10 Termination of services at boundary

11 Construction activity demolition works (Phase 1A)

12 site setup

13 Buildings 11 and 12

14 Building 16

15 Buildings 13, 14 and 15

16 Canteen

17 Building 17

18 Buildings 1 and 2

19 Building 5

20 Break out slabs

21 Crushing of Demolition Arisings

22 Works Completion (phase 1A)

23 Delivery Stage (Phase 1B)

24 Network Rail  submission of BAPA

25 Execution of BAPA agreement 

26 Liaison with Network Rail to agree method and scope of works with Network Rail

27 Liaison with Western Power

28 Termination of services at boundary

29 Construction activity (Phase 1B)

30 Building 6

31 Building 7

32 Building 8 and 9

33 Buildings 3, 4 and 10

34 Break out slabs

35 Crushing of Demolition Arisings

36 Works complete

37 Delivery Stage (Phase 2) risk item to be confirmed

38 Further Ground Investigations to establish baselines for water and gas levels

39 Preliminary DQRA

40 Preliminary PVRS

41 Excavate/locate existing tank [ramp area]

42 Removal of existing tank [ramp area

43 Delta Simons investigation works for tank area [ramp area]

44 Delta Simons to take soil samples and send for testing [ramp area

45 Samples returned [tank in ramp area]

46 Issue intermediate report for tank area

47 Form new boreholes to building 8 and 9 boundary

48 Call outs throughout removal of slabs [currently based on 2 visits per month/further investigations, including possible finds and associated works 

49 Issue updated DQRA and PVRS

50 Draft Earthworks report 

51 Final remediation plan issued to SKDC/EA/Planning

52 Review period with SKDC/Developers/Planning/EA

53 Material Management Plan 

54 Approval of remediation plan

55 Earthworks and RemediationPlan - Pricing/sub contractor tender process/instruction

56 Carry out Remediation works [to be confirmed but allowed 4 weeks]

57 Validation of Remediation works. Testing Boreholes on site [Delta Simons advice is 3 months]

58 Works complete

+Planning 

+ +2 Pre-Construction Stage (Phase 1A)

3 Delivery Stage (Phase 1A)

4 Pre-constrction lead in time

5 Submit Section 80 notice

6 Prepare & issue construction phase plan

7 Start on Site

8 Principal designer

9 Remediation testing

10 Termination of services at boundary

11 Construction activity demolition works (Phase 1A)

12 site setup

13 Buildings 11 and 12

14 Building 16

15 Buildings 13, 14 and 15

16 Canteen

17 Building 17

18 Buildings 1 and 2

19 Building 5

20 Break out slabs

21 Crushing of Demolition Arisings

22 Works Completion (phase 1A)

23 Delivery Stage (Phase 1B)

24 Network Rail  submission of BAPA

25 Execution of BAPA agreement 

26 Liaison with Network Rail to agree method and scope of works with Network Rail

27 Liaison with Western Power

28 Termination of services at boundary

29 Construction activity (Phase 1B)

30 Building 6

31 Building 7

32 Building 8 and 9

33 Buildings 3, 4 and 10

34 Break out slabs

35 Crushing of Demolition Arisings

36 Works complete

37 Delivery Stage (Phase 2) risk item to be confirmed

38 Further Ground Investigations to establish baselines for water and gas levels

39 Preliminary DQRA

40 Preliminary PVRS

41 Excavate/locate existing tank [ramp area]

42 Removal of existing tank [ramp area

43 Delta Simons investigation works for tank area [ramp area]

44 Delta Simons to take soil samples and send for testing [ramp area

45 Samples returned [tank in ramp area]

46 Issue intermediate report for tank area

47 Form new boreholes to building 8 and 9 boundary

48 Call outs throughout removal of slabs [currently based on 2 visits per month/further investigations, including possible finds and associated works 

49 Issue updated DQRA and PVRS

50 Draft Earthworks report 

51 Final remediation plan issued to SKDC/EA/Planning

52 Review period with SKDC/Developers/Planning/EA

53 Material Management Plan 

54 Approval of remediation plan

55 Earthworks and RemediationPlan - Pricing/sub contractor tender process/instruction

56 Carry out Remediation works [to be confirmed but allowed 4 weeks]

57 Validation of Remediation works. Testing Boreholes on site [Delta Simons advice is 3 months]

58 Works complete

Milestone Appearances
Diamond

87



88



 

 

       

Finance, Economic Development 
and Corporate Services Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 

 

 

27 September 2022 

 

Report of  

Councillor Adam Stokes 

The Deputy Leader of the Council 

 

 

 

Finance Update Report: April – August 2022 
 

Report Author 

Claire Morgan (Senior Accountant) 

 
Claire.morgan@southkesteven.gov.uk  

 

Purpose of Report 

To inform Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee of the Council’s forecast 2022/23 financial position as at the end of 

August 2022. The report covers the following areas:                                       
 

• General Fund Revenue Budget 

• Housing Revenue Account Budget 

• Capital Programmes – General Fund and Housing Revenue Account 

Recommendations 

 

That the Finance Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee: 

1. Reviews and notes the forecast 2022/23 outturn position for the General 
Fund and HRA Revenue and Capital budgets as at the end of August 2022 
and identify any variances that require action or investigation. 

2. Recommends any specific actions or interventions that should be 
considered in order to reduce the General Fund forecast deficit. 

89

Agenda Item 9

mailto:Claire.morgan@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for 
publication? 

No  

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

Growth and our economy 

Housing that meets the needs of all residents 

Healthy and strong communities 

Clean and sustainable environment 

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All  

 

1.  Implications 

 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, staffing, 

community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s declaration 

of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 The financial implications are included within the report. 

Completed by: Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer 

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 As part of good governance, it is important members are kept updated in respect 

of the financial position of Council expenditure during the year. 

Completed by:  

Risk and Mitigation 

1.3 A risk register is at Appendix A and shows that all known current risks are 

recognised and associated mitigating actions are in place. 

Completed by: Tracey Elliott, Governance and Risk Officer 

 

 

90



2 Background to the Report 

2.1 During the current financial year, the Finance, Economic Development and 

Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee is being provided with 

regular finance reports that monitor and forecast the budget against the current 

economic conditions that are facing the Council. 

3 Revenue Budget 2022/23 – General Fund  

3.1 The budget set by Council on 3 March 2022 was £18.247m. Table 1 shows the 

summary of movements.  
 

Table 1 – General Fund Revenue Budget Amendments 

 
 

Date of Approval Revenue Budget amendment £’000 

  18,247 

April 2022 Regeneration Reserve 30 

April 2022 ICT Reserve 68 

May 2022 Invest to Save Reserve  500 

July 2022  2021/22 Budget Carry Forwards 1,632 

August 2022 Waste Reserve 81 

Total  20,558 
 

3.2 Table 2 shows a current forecast deficit of £417k. The deficit forecast is primarily 

due to the inflationary increases on fuel (£200k), projected workshop cost pressures 

due to outsourcing of specific repairs (£82k), material costs (£200k) required for the 

maintenance of Council’s fleet and removal of the salary vacancy factor forecasts 

(£446k) which is proving challenging to achieve due to the use of temporary staff 

where there are key vacancies. These projected key overspend will continue to be 

monitored in order to reduce the level of the projected variance. 

3.3 An increase in interest rates receivable on investments will be used to partially offset 

the forecasted inflationary increases (£400k). 

3.4 Members are reminded that the net cost of budget includes an efficiency saving of 

£500k for the corporate restructure. This will be achieved in 2022/23. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

91



Table 2 – General Fund Forecast Outturn Position 

Description 

2022/23  

Original 
Budget 

2022/23 

Current  

Budget 

2022/23 

Forecast  

spend 

Forecast 
Variance 

Forecast 
Variance 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % 

Corporate 8,641 8,853 9,620 767 8.7% 

Finance 4,344 4,892 4,879 (13) (0.3%) 

Growth & Culture 6,726 6,683 6,830 147 2.2% 

Housing & Property 1,323 2,917 2,831 (86) (2.9%) 

HRA Recharge (2,787) (2,787) (2,787) 0 0.0% 

Net Cost of Service 18,247 20,558 21,373 815 4.0% 

Investment Income (101) (101) (501) (400) 
 

Minimum Revenue 
Provision 

291 291 291 0   

Revenue 
Contribution to 
Capital 

55 55 55 0  

Drainage Rates 792 792 792 0  

Depreciation (4,722) (4,722) (4,722) 0  

Net Budget 
Requirement 

14,562 16,873 17,288 415   

Total Funding  (14,564) (14,564) (14,564) 0   

Transfers to/(from) 
earmarked reserves 

2 (2,309) (2,307) 2 

Net Budget Deficit 0 0 417 417  

 

1.1 Table 3 shows the significant forecast variances for the General Fund revenue for 

2022/23 as at 31 August 2022. 

 

 

 

 

 

92



Table 3 – General Fund Revenue – Significant Variances 

 

Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

Fuel 

Inflationary price increases have resulted in a forecast over spend.  This 
is based on a 0.2% increase per week for the remainder of 2022/23, this 
will continue to be monitored on a weekly basis and the forecast will be 
amended accordingly 

220 

Street Scene 

Workshop – A combination of increase in price and quantity of 
consumables, external and specialist repair work in particular on end-of-
life vehicles has resulted in a current forecast overspend of £282k 

282 

Arts Centres 

There is a net loss of income following a reduced programme for films and 
workshops across the centres and live shows at the Mere’s leisure centre   

29 

Festivals 

The programme is currently under review so no further expenditure has 
been committed in 2022/23, resulting in an under spend  

(30) 

Salary vacancy factor 

A reduction in vacant posts across the Council and increases in agency 
provision will have a direct impact on the achievement of the salary 
vacancy factor.  This will continue to be monitored during the year and the 
forecast amended accordingly 

446 

Investment Income 

Base rate increases have resulted in an increase on the interest rates 
available for investments.  The Council is now able to secure interest rates 
of 3% compared with the budgeted rate of 0.5% 

(400) 

 

2 General Fund Capital Programme 2022/23 

The budget set by Council on 3 March 2022 for the 2022/23 General Fund Capital 

programme is £19.608m. Table 4 shows the summary of movements: 

Table 4 – General Fund Capital Programme Budget Adjustments 

Date of 
Approval 

GF Budget amendment £’000 

  19,608 

March 2022 Changing Places Facilities – Grant award 160 

April 2022 Street Scene Vehicle Procurement – delivery of 
vehicles in March 22 (funding utilised from 22/23) 

(525) 

May 2022 Disabled Facilities Grant- additional award 115 

93



July 2022 2021/22 Budget Carry Forwards 990 

Total  20,348 

 

2.1 Table 5 summarises the General Fund Capital forecast outturn position as at 31 

August 2022.  

Table 5 – General Fund Capital Forecast Outturn Position 

Capital Scheme 

2022/23 
Original 
Budget 

 

£’000 

2022/23 
Current 
Budget 

 

£’000 

2022/23 
Forecast 

spend 

 

£’000 

Forecast 
Variance 

 

 

£’000 

Forecast 
Variance 

 

 

% 

Corporate 2,517 2,349 2,339 (10) (0.4%) 

Finance  0 27 27 0 0.0% 

Growth & Culture 13,992 14,059 14,059 0 0.0% 

Housing & 
Property 3,099 3,913 3,477 (436) (11.1%) 

Total Expenditure 19,608 20,348 19,902 (446) (2.2%) 

 

2.2 Table 6 shows the significant forecast variances for the General Fund capital 

schemes for 2022/23 as at 31 August 2022. 

Table 6 – General Fund Capital – Significant Variances 

Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

Welham Street- Resurfacing, Lift & Car Park barriers 

Savings made on lift works due to refined specifications during 
procurement. 

(100) 

Empingham Road S106 Grants 

Until terms and conditions of the S106 monies have been fully met, 
funds cannot be transferred. This is unlikely to occur in 2022/23. 

(298) 

 

2.3 The capital schemes within the programme for 2022/23 are currently being 

reviewed to assess their exposure to the financial volatility which is being 

experienced (specifically material and labour price changes). This review will 

identify those schemes and projects which will require amended phasing or 

financing over the period of the programme. 

3 Revenue Budget 2022/23 – Housing Revenue Account 

94



The budget set by Council on 3 March 2022 for the 2022/23 HRA Revenue Budget 

was £6,116m. The budgeted surplus is fully utilised to fund future investment in 

stock growth and property maintenance. Table 7 shows the summary of 

movements: 

 

Table 7 – HRA Revenue Budget Adjustments 

Date of Approval HRA Budget amendment £’000 

  (6,116) 

March 2021 Electrical Testing 150 

July 2022 2021/22 Budget carry forwards 200 

July 2022 Earlesfield Project 1,364 

Total  (4,402) 

3.1 Table 8 shows an increased surplus for the HRA of £4.541m compared to a 

budgeted surplus of £4.401m.   The increased surplus is due to an increase in 

interest rates receivable on investments will be used to partially offset the 

forecasted inflationary increases (£500k).  This is offset by inflationary increases 

on fuel (£30k), increased repairs and maintenance costs (£170k), increased 

supervision and management costs (£38kk) and removal of the salary vacancy 

factor forecasts (£136k) which will be monitored throughout the remainder of the 

financial year.   Further details of these variances are provided in table 9. 

Table 8 – HRA Revenue Forecast Outturn Position 

Description 

2022/23 
Original 
Budget 

£’000 

2022/23 
Current 
Budget 

£’000 

2022/23 
Forecast 

spend 

£’000 

Forecast 
Variance  
£’000 

Forecast 
Variance  

% 

Income (26,512) (26,512) (26,483) 29 0.1% 

Expenditure 18,261 19,976 20,407 431 2.2% 

Net Cost of HRA Services (8,251) (6,536) (6,076) 460 7.0% 

Interest Payable 2,335 2,335 2,335 0  

Investment Income (200) (200) (800) (600)  

Surplus for the year (6,116) (4,401) (4,541) (140)  

3.2 Table 9 shows the significant forecast variances for the HRA Revenue fund 

schemes for 2022/23 as at 31 August 2022. 

Table 9 – HRA Revenue – Significant Variances 

 

Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

Repairs & Maintenance 170 

95



Compliance works have required an additional £100k of electrical testing, £70k 
of expected additional costs for compensation payments being made due to 
disrepair claims received by the Council. 

Supervision & Management – General 

Additional costs of £20k are expected to be incurred on Right to Buy 
valuations as the number of applications has increased.  A second Tenant 
Satisfaction survey will be issued during 22/23 which is expected to cost £18k.  

38 

Salary vacancy factor 

A reduction in vacant posts across the Council, an increase in notice periods 
and increases in agency provision will have a direct impact on the 
achievement of the salary vacancy factor.  This will continue to be monitored 
during the year and the forecast amended accordingly. 

136 

Fuel 

Inflationary price increases have resulted in a forecast over spend.  This is 
based on a 0.2% increase per week for the remainder of 22/23, this will continue 
to be monitored on a weekly basis and the forecast will be amended accordingly. 

30 

Investment Income 

Base rate increases have resulted in an increase on the interest rates available 
for investments.  The Council is now able to secure interest rates of 3% 
compared with the budgeted rate of 0.5%.   

(500) 

 

4 HRA Capital Programme 2022/23 

The budget set by Council on 3 March 2022 for the 2022/23 HRA Capital 

programme is £16.353m. Table 10 shows the summary of movements: 

 

Table 10 – HRA Capital Programme Budget Adjustments 

Date of Approval GF Budget amendment £’000 

  16,353 

July 2022 2021/22 Budget Carry Forwards  2,881 

Total  19,234 

 

Table 11 summarises the HRA Capital forecast outturn position as at 31 August 

2022.  

Table 11 – HRA Capital Forecast Outturn Position 

Capital Scheme 

2022/23 
Original 
Budget 

£’000 

2022/23 

Current 
Budget 

£’000 

2022/23 
Forecast 

spend 

£’000 

Forecast 
Variance 

£’000 

Forecast 
Variance  

% 

Energy Efficiency Initiatives 3,885  4,230 4,223  (7)  (0.2%) 

96



ICT 1,170 1,220 720 (470) (38.5%) 

Repairs Vehicles 178 178 178 0 0.0% 

New Build Programme 3,820 4,120 1,800 (2,320) (56.3%) 

Refurbishment and Improvement 7,300 9,486    7,254 (2,232) (23.5%) 

Total Expenditure 16,353     19,234 14,175 (5,059) (26.3%) 

 

4.1 Table 12 shows the significant forecast variances for the HRA capital schemes for 

2022/23 as at 31 August 2022.   

Table 12 – HRA Capital – Significant Variances 

Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

Housing System Enhancements 

The system is forecast to go live in April 2023. Further modules will be 
delivered over the next 4 years and the in year underspend will be used to 
fund these in future years. 

(500) 

Communal Rooms 

Reduced programme and emphasis on works related to landlord health and 
safety. Strategic review of the communal rooms offer is planned so the 
immediate focus is on compliance work. 

(100) 

Replacement Doors & Windows Programme 

Difficulties with current supplier capacity has led to the need to identify an 
alternative supplier in order to recommence the programme 

(1,087) 

Housing Growth 

Swinegate, Grantham and Elizabeth Road, Stamford expected to start on 
site March 2023. Two further projects at Uplands Drive, Grantham and Larch 
Close, Grantham are currently in the planning stage. This year’s programme 
will also include the acquisition of properties on the open market.  

(2,320) 

Kitchens & Bathrooms Programme 

There is an impact on the contractor delivering the programme due to other 
SK works being prioritised, coupled with contractor staff shortages causing 
capacity issues. This is causing a delay in the programme delivery. 

(903) 

Tunstall 

Uplift on budget due to increased operational costs and additional properties 
being added to the programme.  The forecast overspend will be met using 
the communal room underspend. 

26 

Door Entry System 

Review of procurement arrangements to be undertaken therefore a smaller 
improvement scheme is planned for this year. 

(240) 

Re-roofing 

Increased due to planned additional works coupled with inflationary and 
labour increases. Forecast overspend will be mitigated through underspend 
on doors and windows programme. 

300 

97



Re-wiring 

Due to delays in starting the Earlesfield programme which will now start in 
October. It is not likely that the initial programme will completed this financial 
year. 

(303) 

Fire Prevention 

The forecast overspend is due to statutory landlord obligations and the level 
of significant works required. This will be offset by the underspend on 
communal rooms. 

75 

 

4.2 The capital schemes within the programme for 2022/23 are currently being 

reviewed to assess their exposure to the financial volatility which is being 

experienced (specifically material and labour price changes). This review will 

identify those schemes and projects which will require amended phasing or 

financing over the period of the programme. 

5 Inflation 

5.1 Since the budgets were prepared last autumn and approved by Council in March 

2022, there has been an unprecedented and completely unforeseen increase in 

inflation and energy costs.  This context along with potential pressures on the 

salary budgets is causing concern that the budget framework for 2022/23 will come 

under pressure as the year progresses. 

5.2 As part of the outturn report, an inflation reserve of £500k was created for the 
General Fund to absorb any potential cost pressures during the current financial 
year.  Whilst this will provide some short-term funding support, there will be a 
funding pressure going into 2023/24 which will need to be considered as part of 
the budget setting process. 

5.3 Fuel 

The combined fuel budget is £690k for 2022/23 (90% General Fund and 10% 

HRA).  Fuel usage is approximately 625,000 litres per annum and the budgeted 

price per litre was set at £1.10.  The latest bulk purchase unit price paid was 

£142.29 and has increased at an average increase of 0.2% per week since 1 April 

2022.  If the price of fuel increases at the same rate for the remainder of the year 

then there will be a pressure of circa £230k for the current financial year and an 

increased pressure in next financial year.   This budgetary pressure is being 

monitored on a weekly basis and any additional budgetary pressures will be 

reported to this committee at future meetings. 

5.4 Utilities 

The General Fund budget for electricity for 2022/23 is £517k which includes a 

budget increase of 17% compared to 2021/22.  The HRA budget for 2022/23 is 

£155k which is an increase of 36% when compared to 2021/22.   The General 

Fund budget for gas for 2022/23 is £70k, an increase of 24% compared to 

2021/22.  The HRA budget is £149k which is an increase of 18% compared to 

2021/22.     

98



The most information received from the ESPO framework has confirmed the 

following: 

Electricity Consumption Rates: 

• 115% increase from October 2022 compared to October 2021 

• 10% increase from October 2023 compared to October 2022 

Gas Consumption Rates 

• 70% increase from April 2022 compared to 2021/22 

• 200% compared for 2023/24 compared to 2022/23 

5.5 Following the government announcement regarding the energy price cap 

confirmation has been received that a new six-month scheme for businesses and 

other non-domestic energy users including public sector organisations will be 

developed to offer support which will protect the Council from the price increases 

in 2022/23.   

5.6 There is currently no protection from price increases in 2023/24 which will result in 

significant cost increases when compared to current consumption: 

 

 

 
2021/22 

Outturn 

£ 

2022/23 

Budget 

£ 

2023/24 

Indicative 

Budget 

£ 

2023/24 

Updated 

Projection 

£ 

General Fund 

Electricity 402,958 516,650 554,750 1,201,200 

Gas 50,641 70,000 78,600 241,053 

HRA 

Electricity 176,255 154,800 170,200 520,800 

Gas 104,055 148,600 163,400 495,062 

 

Summary of 2023/24 budget increases (amount above currently budgeted): 

 2023/24  

(£) 

General Fund 808,903 

HRA 682,262 

99



 

5.5 These projected increases relate to the Council only and therefore do not include 

any potential increases that may adversely impact on the Council owned 

companies, specifically EnvironmentSK Ltd and LeisureSK Ltd.   In the event the 

companies are unable to accommodate the additional costs, then the necessary 

representation will be made to the Companies Committee. 

5.6 A working group has been created in order to identify a series of actions which will 

be designed to mitigate the projected increase as far as possible.  Further 

information regarding the actions will be presented to the committee at a later date.   

6.   Reasons for the Recommendations 

6.1 Committee Members should be kept updated on the financial position of the 

Authority, as effective budget management is critical to ensuring financial 

resources are spent in line with the budget and are targeted towards the 

Council’s priorities.  Monitoring enables the early identification of variations 

against the plan and facilitates timely corrective action. 

6.2 This report provides an overview of the forecast 2022/23 financial position for the 

Council and focuses on the position as at the end of August 2022. 

 

 7.  Consultation 

 

7.1 The Committee requested that regular reports be presented at each Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) meeting to ensure members were kept fully 

updated on the financial situation. 

 8.   Background Papers 

8.1 Determination of Budget 2022/23 and indicative budgets for 24/25 – General 

Fund, Housing Revenue Account and associated Capital Programmes Report. 

   http://moderngovsvr/documents/s32627/Council%20Budget%20Report.pdf 

 

  8.2 Provisional Outturn Position 2021/22 report 

 http://moderngovsvr/documents/s35223/Draft%20Financial%20Outturn%202021

22.pdf 

 9.   Appendices 

 9.1   Appendix A – Risk Register 

 

 

 

 

100

http://moderngovsvr/documents/s32627/Council%20Budget%20Report.pdf
http://moderngovsvr/documents/s35223/Draft%20Financial%20Outturn%20202122.pdf
http://moderngovsvr/documents/s35223/Draft%20Financial%20Outturn%20202122.pdf


 

 

 

101



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A – Finance Risk Register 
 

Risk 
Likeli-
hood 

Impact 

Residual 
Risk 

Score 
Mitigating Action 

1. Increase in borrowing interest 
rates 

3 3 9 
High 

Interest rates are continually monitored as they increased to an average of 3% 
compared to a budgeted assumption of 0.5%.  This has a positive impact on the 
investment income received although should the Council consider external borrowing 
then there is now an additional resource pressure as borrowing rates have increased 
significantly since April 2022.  

2. Capital programmes requiring 
borrowing in the medium term  

4 3 12 
Very High 

Continue to undertake financial modelling to identify consequences of undertaking 
borrowing and align this with savings that will need to be approved before borrowing is 
undertaken in order to ensure ongoing affordability and financial sustainability. 
Reprofiling of the capital programme will be considered as part of the options appraisal. 

3. Lack of clarity for funding levels 
from 2023/24 and beyond  

3 3 9 
High 

Although a two year settlement was expected, the newly Government has not yet made 
any announcements.  Any changes to the assumed levels will need to be modelled to 
assess their impact. 

4. Fluctuation in business rates 
2 2 4 

Medium 

The economic impact of the pandemic is yet to be fully determined which may have an 
adverse impact on the business rate base.  Monthly reviews are in place to assess any 
adverse impact on the collectible amount.  

5. Increase in bad debts as a result 
of economic circumstances 

3 2 6 
High The Council has pro-active debt management procedures in place. 

6. Increased maintenance costs of 
fixed assets 

3 2 6 
High 

The budget proposals for 2022/23 propose a significant increase in the maintenance 
budgets for both leisure centres (£150k pa) and one-off  budget of £400k.  

7. Inflation increases beyond 
budgeted levels  

4 3 12 
Very High 

Budget assumptions kept up to date with most recent projections and monthly 
sensitivity analysis is produced to monitor the impact of inflationary increases. 

8. Fee Income volatility 2 2 4 
Medium 

Early monitoring of deviations and regular reporting to both budget holders and members. 

9. Fuel and utility price volatility  4 3 12 
Very High 

Weekly monitoring of fuel charge and proactive interventions to ensure optimisation of 
fuel consumption.  Utility cost increases will have a significant impact on the Council 
finances following the 6 month price freeze announced by the Government on 8 
September 2022.   

103

A
ppendix A



10. Inadequate capital resources to 
finance future desired plans 

3 3 9 
High 

Asset disposal programme approved and pipeline of asset disposal in progress in order 
to generate capital receipts.  

 
  

104



 

 
 

105



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme 2022-23 

 
 

Committee Membership: 9 

Chairman: Councillor Helen Crawford 

Vice Chairman: Councillor Ben Green 

REPORT TITLE ISSUE PURPOSE ORIGINATED 
CORPORATE 

PRIORITY 

27 September 2022 

IT Investment 
Road Map Plan 

Lead Officer: 
Gary Andrew (IT Manager) 
 

To review the IT Investment 
Road Map Plan to be taken 
forward to Cabinet.  

Agreed at agenda setting 
meeting 

A high performing 
Council 

St Martins Park  Lead Officer: Debbie Roberts 
(Organisational Development 
and Change Manager) 

For Members to note and 
review 

Agreed at agenda setting 
meeting 

Growth and our 
Economy 

Update on 
Heritage Action 
Zone shop front 
improvements in 
Grantham 

Lead Officer: Claire Saunders 
(Project Management Assistant) 

To update Committee 
members on the Grantham 
High Street Heritage Action 
Zone (HSHAZ). 

Agreed at agenda setting 
meeting 

Growth and our 
Economy 

Quarter 1 Budget 
Monitoring 

Lead Officer: Richard Wyles 
(Chief Finance Officer) 

Update to Members Agreed at agenda setting 
meeting 

High Performing 
Council 
 
 
 

22 November 2022 

Section 106 
Monitoring Report 

Lead Officer: Emma Whittaker  
(Assistant Director for Planning) 

To update the Committee on 
the Council’s Section 106 
activity.  

Agreed at agenda setting 
meeting 

Growth and our 
Economy 

107

A
genda Item

 10



 
 

REPORT TITLE ISSUE PURPOSE ORIGINATED 
CORPORATE 

PRIORITY 

Localised Council 
Tax Support 
Scheme 2022/23 

Lead Officer:  
Claire Moses (Head of Revenues 
and Benefits) 

To review the Council’s 
Local Council Tax Support 
Scheme 

Standing item High Performing 
Council 

Progress Update 
on the Economic 
Development 
Strategy  

Lead Officer: 
Jon Hinde (Head of Economic 
Development)  
 

To update Members on the 
new five-year Economic 
Development Strategy for 
South Kesteven. 

Agreed at agenda setting 
meeting 

Growth and our 
Economy  

Quarter 2 Budget 
Monitoring  

Lead Officer: Richard Wyles 
(Chief Finance Officer) 

Update to Committee Agreed at agenda setting 
meeting 

High Performing 
Council 

Corporate Plan 
Key Performance 
Indicators Update 

Lead Officer:  Claire Moses ( 
Head of Revenues and Benefits) 

Update to Committee Agreed at July Committee 
Meeting 

High Performing 
Council 

21 February 2023 

Grantham Future 
High Streets Fund 

Lead Officer: Alex Ward 
(Programme Manager) 

An update on the progress 
of the Future High Streets 
Fund projects in Grantham.  

Agreed at agenda setting 
meeting 

Growth and our 
Economy 

Quarter 3 Budget 
Monitoring  

Lead Officer: Richard Wyles 
(Chief Finance Officer) 

 Agreed at agenda setting 
meeting 

High Performing 
Council 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Unscheduled items 

Report title Issue Originated Corporate Priority 
 

The Committee’s Remit 
 

The remit of the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be to work alongside Cabinet 
Members to assist with the development of policy and to scrutinise decisions in respect of, but not limited to: 

108



 
 

 

• Budget monitoring 

• Budget setting 

• Business rate relief 

• Business transformation 

• Car parks, bus stations and town centre infrastructure  

• Charitable rate relief 

• Council-owned property, assets and maintenance (non-council house) 

• Customer access strategy 

• Data protection reporting 

• Economic development 

• Fees and charges 

• Large-scale development projects 

• Medium term financial planning and national funding proposals 

• Performance reporting 

• Review of outturn 

• Shop front designs and funding 

• Street furniture 

• Town centre developments and partnerships 
 

109



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

       

Finance, Economic 
Development and 
Corporate Services 
Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 
 

27 September 2022 
 
Report of Councillor Rosemary 
Trollope-Bellew, Cabinet Member for 
Culture and Visitor Economy 
 
 

 

Update on the Grantham High Street Heritage 

Action Zone Shopfront and Building Regeneration 

Programme 
 

Report Author 

Claire Saunders, High Street Heritage Action Zone Project Manager 

  claire.saunders@investsk.co.uk 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

To provide a progress update on the High Street Heritage Action Zone Shopfront 

Regeneration Programme.  

 

 

Recommendation 

That Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee: 

1. Celebrates the progress made on the capital elements of the shopfront 
and building regeneration schemes within the Grantham High Street 
Heritage Action Zone Programme.  

 

111

Agenda Item 12

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No  

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

Growth and our economy 

 

Which wards are impacted? Grantham St Wulfram’s Ward 

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, staffing, 

community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s declaration 

of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 The total allocation of funding to the capital programme within the 2022/2023 

financial year is £443,778 which includes both shopfront projects and Westgate Hall 

regeneration project.  

 

1.2 The allocation for 2023/24 is £107,799. 

 

1.3 The annual allocation from Historic England must be spent within the financial year 

and may not be rolled forward into future years of the programme.  There could be 

a financial risk if any of the spend profile exceeds the financial year and no carry 

over can be approved. 

 

1.4 Services and materials relating to capital projects are procured and commissioned 

directly by the grant recipient, who must follow Historic England’s procurement 

requirements and provide evidence of this.   

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.5 The Shopfront and Building Regeneration Programme is overseen by the combined 

Future High Street Fund and High Street Heritage Action Zone Project Board, made 

up of the Leader of the Council, the Deputy Leader, the Cabinet Member for Culture 

and Visitor Economy, the Chief Executive, Chief Finance Officer, Director of Growth 

and Culture, the Head of Economic Development and the Principal Advisor, Historic 

Places (Historic England).  

 

1.6 Grant Award decisions are made according to the relevant delegated authority 

levels, and the Council’s Financial Regulations.  
 

112



Consult with Alan Robinson, Graham Watts or Mandy Braithwaite (Do not delete) 

 

Risk and Mitigation 

 

1.7 The most significant risk to the programme is the timescales for project delivery.  

Currently there is a nationwide shortage of contractor which occasionally leads to 

project timescales slipping and difficulty in tendering works.   

 

1.8 This is exacerbated by the requirement, in most instances, to use specialist 

contractors; and the number of other similar regeneration projects taking place 

nationally.  

 

1.9 Materials shortages - particularly steel and hardwoods usually sourced from eastern 

Europe also impact the delivery timetable for projects.  

 

1.10 As mitigation, projects which are being submitted by the same property owners, are 

being tendered together to encourage interest from larger contractors.  

Projects must be fully tendered before applicants are able to submit a full 

application.  

 

1.11 The current high levels of inflation will not directly impact on the financial allocations 

from either Historic England or the Council, as grants are capped at a maximum 

level.  However, there is a risk that grant applicants may choose not to take up grant 

offers if their contribution to the project costs is no longer affordable to them.  

 

1.12 A grant clawback clause applies if a property which has received a grant is sold, 

otherwise disposed of, or significantly changed within three years of the final grant 

payment. 

 

 

Health and Safety 

 

1.13 Contractors are responsible for maintaining appropriate health and safety on site 

and must comply with all the relevant legislation.  

 

Diversity and Inclusion 

 

1.14 Eligibility for the grant schemes is limited by the terms of the funding agreement 

with Historic England.  Properties must be located on High Street, Westgate, the 

Market Place or Watergate, (with a priority on Westgate and Marketplace) and must 

have been built prior to 1939.  

 

1.15 Applicants must have the legal ability to accept the grant funding, typically the 

property owner. Tenants with full maintaining leases may apply but must do so with 

the written permission of the property owner.  

113



 

 

Is an Equality Impact Assessment required?  

No 

 

Climate Change 

 

1.16 The programme encourages the retention of as much original material as possible. 

While this is primarily to maintain the historic fabric of buildings, it also prevents 

unnecessary use of new resources.  

 

1.17 Traditional building methods are often lower carbon options than their modern 

counterparts, for example the use of lime-based mortars and renders generates 

less CO2 than the equivalent volumes of cement-based products.  
 

1.18 The scheme acknowledges the amount of embodied carbon within historic 

buildings, and ultimately supports bringing vacant or underutilised properties back 

into use, reducing the requirement for new build properties.  

 

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1  The South Kesteven District Council Corporate Plan (2020-2023) identifies 

delivering growth as fundamental to the success of the District, its businesses and 

residents.  Developing the centres and high streets of South Kesteven’s four towns 

is a priority.  A key action is the regeneration of Grantham town centre, supported 

by the Future High Street Programme and delivery of the Heritage Action Zone 

project.   

2.2 On 8 September 2021, Members of the Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee were provided with an update on the Grantham High Street 

Heritage Action Zone (HSHAZ) project. The HSHAZ supports the preservation and 

reinstatement of Grantham’s historic environment and encourages private sector 

investment into the town centre.  

 

2.2  The HSHAZ is an England-wide funding programme which sits alongside the Future 

High Street Fund (FHSF) to support the regeneration of town centres. Members of 

Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee received a progress update on the £5.56 million FHSF projects in 

Grantham on 3 May 2022.   

 

2.3  The HSHAZ funding is administered by Historic England, who are active partners in 

the delivery of the scheme. There are 68 High Street Heritage Action Zone projects 

currently being delivered nationally. Grantham is one of only two projects in 

Lincolnshire (the other being in Lincoln).   

  

114



2.4 Grantham HSHAZ is four-year programme which began in April 2020 and will run 

until 31 March 2024.  This £1.25 Million programme is made up of £886,540 from 

Historic England and a £375,660 contribution from South Kesteven District Council.  

 

2.5 The HSHAZ includes capital work projects (shopfront and ‘Key Building’ 

regeneration schemes), as well as funding for community engagement, 

consultation, and legacy planning. 

 

2.6 The overall funding ratio for the HSHAZ is 70:30 (Historic England: South Kesteven 

District Council). However, the rate varies depending on the individual projects 

within the scheme.  Capital projects are funded at a rate of 60:40 (Historic England: 

South Kesteven District Council).  Revenue costs, including staffing, are funded at 

a rate of 90:10 (Historic England: South Kesteven District Council).  

 

2.7 For shop front projects, the maximum grant value is £25,000. For larger ‘Key 

Buildings’ grants which include Westgate Hall and 71 High Street (Addaction), the 

maximum grant value is determined by the overall costs of the works and the 

viability gap for completing the works. 

 

2.8  Maximum grant values are set out in a formal grant agreement prior to works 

commencing and are based on a completed tender. The grants do not exceed 80% 

of the total eligible costs.   

 

2.9 Grants up to £200,000 are assessed by the combined Future High Street Fund and 

High Street Heritage Action Zone Project Board (the Project Board) and approved 

by the relevant senior officer through their existing delegated powers. 

  

2.10 Grants of £200,000 and above are assessed by the Project Board and referred to 

Cabinet for recommendation to Historic England for approval. Any grant which 

results in a contribution from Historic England of £50,000 or more, is referred to 

Historic England for formal approval.  

 

2.11 The original bid submission estimated the private sector contribution to the scheme 

would likely be in the region of £130,000, which comprised property owners’ 

contribution to total project costs. Encouragingly, it is now estimated the private 

sector contribution to the scheme will be in the region of £375,000, assuming all 

projects complete as planned.  This increase in leveraged private sector investment 

is primarily due to the inclusion of Westgate Hall into the scheme.    
 

2.12 Two capital projects are currently in the delivery phase, 71 High Street and 68 

Westgate as follows: 

 

• 71 High Street is a former Burtons building which was built in 1936, one of only 

two art-deco period buildings in Grantham town centre. The project will restore 

a frontage as similar as possible to the original 1930’s design, which includes 

black granite cladding of the facia and stall riser (above and below the windows). 

115



The project has suffered from delays due to materials and contractor shortages, 

however is due to complete this financial year.  

 

The total cost of the project, including the property owners contribution is 

£127,313, for which a grant of  £86,180 has been awarded.  

 

• 68 Westgate is a standard shopfront regeneration project due to complete by 

November 2022.  

 

The total project costs, including the property owners contribution is £31,000 , 

for which a grant of  £25,000 has been awarded. 

 

2.13 The shopfront scheme currently has 11 projects in development and planned for 

delivery by March 2024. These are outlined in the exempt papers because of grants 

are not yet formally approved.  Should all the projects proceed to the delivery phase, 

the scheme will be fully subscribed. There is a waiting list for applicants should any 

scheme not come forward.  

 

2.14 As reported to Cabinet on 12 July 2022, the largest single grant aided project within 

the scheme is the Westgate Hall restoration project. The project will result in 

Westgate Hall being brought back into use as an independent fine dining restaurant. 

The project will receive a maximum of £300,000 in grant funding pending full 

planning permission and a completed tender process.  

 

2.15 Grant funding will support repairs to the fabric of the building up to the completion 

of first fix works. This includes the reinstatement of 12 original octagonal skylight 

windows. Costs relating to decoration, fit out, restaurant fixtures etc. are not eligible 

for funding. The property owner will contribute circa £100,000 to the restoration of 

the building to a shell condition (first fix). The tenant will fund the entirety of the fit 

out of the restaurant and is estimating their contribution to be in the region of 

£200,000.    

 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 The Grantham High Street Heritage Action Zone programme has allowed South 

Kesteven District Council to leverage significant levels of public and private sector 

funding.  The scheme has encouraged and permitted property owners in the town 

centre to invest in their buildings at a time of rapidly rising costs and financial 

uncertainty. The funding not only allows businesses to make necessary changes, it 

also offers the potential to rejuvenate their shop front and improve experiences for 

their customers. Working closely with the FHSF Programme Manager, Officers are 

ensuring the maximum benefit is derived from the Council’s investment.   

 

3.2 The HSHAZ Programme has allowed the Council to develop a strong working 

relationship with town centre property owners and with Historic England as a funder. 

This approach has enabled flexibility in the identification and development of 

116



individual projects (within the context of the programme design), to maximise the 

benefits of the scheme.  

 

3.3  The HSHAZ has aided cross-council working. In addition to the capital elements of 

the programme, other work delivered has been supported by the Council’s Planning 

Team and includes a review and update of the current Conservation Area 

Management Plan, and the completion of an updated Shopfront Design Guide. 

 

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1  Grantham’s conservation area is currently considered ‘at risk’ by Historic England. 

It is for this reason the ‘do nothing’ option was discounted. The deterioration of the 

town centre heritage was of particular concern, and as such Historic England were 

keen to support the HSHAZ in Grantham. Without the intervention of the HSHAZ, it 

is likely retail properties within the town centre will continue to deteriorate, and 

historic features and character lost.  

 

5. Reasons for the Recommendation 
 

5.1 An attractive shop front will help drive visitors to businesses and repairs to front 

elevations will improve the experience of the high street. The HSHAZ scheme has 

encouraged significant investment from property owners, who otherwise may not 

have committed to expenditure without the benefit of grant funding to support the 

viability cost gap of the projects. The report recommends celebrating the progress 

of the HSHAZ to date, which is assisting with the renovation, re-design and general 

improvement of shop fronts to facilitate the ongoing regeneration of Grantham town 

centre. 

 

7. Background Papers 
 

7.1 Update report on Grantham High Street Heritage Action Zone Project - Report to 

Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee, published 8 

September 2021, available online at:  

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s30754/HAZ%20Report.pdf 

 

7.2 Grantham Future High Streets Fund - Report to Finance, Economic Development 

and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee, published 3 May 2022, 

available online at:  

https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s34117/Report.pdf 

 

7.3 Grantham High Street Heritage Action Zone Scheme - Report to Cabinet, published 

12 July 2022, available online at:  

https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s35107/Covering%20Report.

pdf 

 

8. Appendices 

117

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s30754/HAZ%20Report.pdf
https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s34117/Report.pdf
https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s35107/Covering%20Report.pdf
https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s35107/Covering%20Report.pdf


 
8.1 EXEMPT Appendix One - HSHAZ shopfront scheme 11 projects in development 

and planned for delivery by March 2024. These are exempt because of grants are 

not yet formally approved.   

 

118



Document is Restricted

119

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the meeting held on 19 July 2022
	5 Updates from previous meeting
	7 Draft ICT Strategy 2022-2025
	Appendix A - Draft ICT Strategy 2022-25
	Appendix B - Software Information

	8 Update on St Martin's Park Demolition Works
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6

	9 Finance Update Report: April - August 2022
	Appendix A -  Finance Risk Register

	10 Work Programme 2022 - 2023
	12 Update on the Grantham High Street Heritage Action Zone Shop Front and Building Regeneration Programme
	Appendix


